
 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
Tuesday, January 3, 2023 at 4:00 p.m.  

Remote Participation via Zoom1 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88230172343?pwd=ZjNySGM0aG1waElVRzMremVsamZ0Zz09 

Dial in via phone:  +1 929 436 2866 | Meeting ID: 882 3017 2343| Passcode: 927199 
Download the app at least 5 minutes before the meeting starts: https://zoom.us/download. 

Physical Location - 29 Main Street, Suite 4, Montpelier 
(Facial coverings required for in-person participation) 

 
Persons with disabilities who require assistance or alternate arrangements to participate in 
programs or activities are encouraged to contact Nancy Chartrand at 802-229-0389 or 
chartrand@cvregion.com at least 3 business days prior to the meeting for which services 
are requested. 

Page AGENDA 
 4:002 Adjustments to the Agenda  
  Public Comment 

2 4:05 Audit Presentation, Fred Duplessis, Sullivan, Powers & Co. (enclosed)3 
 4:25 Financial Report (information to be provided)3   

28 4:35 Contract/Agreement Authorization (enclosed)3    
 4:50  FY24 Nominating Committee3  

 Recommend a slate to the Board 
 5:05  Executive Director Search Update, Steve Lotspeich 

84 5:15  Meeting Minutes (enclosed)3 
87 5:20  Commission Meeting Agenda (enclosed)3 

 5:30 Executive Session – 1 V.S.A. § 313(a)(3), Personnel 
 6:00 Adjourn  

Next Meeting:  February 6, 2023 
                                                           
1 Dial-in telephone numbers are “Toll” numbers.  Fees may be charged to the person calling in 
dependent on their phone service. 
2 All times are approximate unless otherwise advertised 
3 Anticipated action item. 

Note: 
Change of 

Day 

01/03/23 1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88230172343?pwd=ZjNySGM0aG1waElVRzMremVsamZ0Zz09
about:blank
about:blank


 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL 
PLANNING COMMISSION  

 
AUDIT REPORT 

 
JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

01/03/23 2



 CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 AUDIT REPORT 
 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 JUNE 30, 2022 
    
 
 
 
   
  Page # 
 
 
Independent Auditor’s  Report  1-4 
 
Financial Statements: 
 
 Statement of Net Position  Exhibit I  5 
 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
  in Net Position  Exhibit II  6 
  
 Statement of Cash Flows  Exhibit III  7 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements   8-13 
 
Other Supplementary Information: 
 
 Schedule of Operations - Budget (Non-GAAP 
  Budgetary Basis) and Actual  Schedule 1  14 
  
 Schedule of Direct and Indirect Costs   Schedule 2  15  
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control 
 Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and  
 Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
 Performed in Accordance with “Government Auditing  
 Standards”    16-17 
 

01/03/23 3



 

 
 
  

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
Board of Commissioners  
Central Vermont Regional 
 Planning Commission 
29 Main Street, Suite 4 
Montpelier, VT 05602 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
  We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Central Vermont 
Regional Planning Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Central Vermont Regional Planning 
Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
   In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the Central Vermont Regional Planning 
Commission as of June 30, 2022 and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in “Government 
Auditing Standards”, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required to be independent of the Central 
Vermont Regional Planning Commission and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Change in Accounting Principles  
 
  As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Central Vermont Regional 
Planning Commission  implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 87 “Leases”.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
  Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.   
 
  In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether 
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the 
Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve 
months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may 
raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards and “Government Auditing Standards” will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements 
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
“Government Auditing Standards”, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s 
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Central Vermont Regional Planning 
Commission’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

  We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and 
certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplemental Information 
 
  Management has omitted Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion on the basic financial statement is not 
affected by this missing information. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
   Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion, on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s basic 
financial statements.  The accompanying financial information listed as Schedules 1 and 2 in the 
table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements.   
 
  Schedules 1 and 2 are the responsibility of management and were derived from and 
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the Schedule of Operations – Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and 
Actual and the Schedule of Direct and Indirect Costs are fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by “Government Auditing Standards” 
 
   In accordance with “Government Auditing Standards”, we have also issued our report 
dated December 20, 2022 on our consideration of the Central Vermont Regional Planning 
Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with “Government Auditing Standards” in considering Central Vermont Regional 
Planning Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
December 20, 2022 
Montpelier, Vermont 
VT Lic. #92-000180 
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Exhibit I

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
   Cash and Cash Equivalents  $ 616,220
   Receivables 165,998
   Prepaid Expenses 19,069

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 801,287

NONCURRENT ASSETS
  Property and Equipment (Net
   of Accumulated Depreciation) 11,191
  Right to Use Leased Asset (Net of Accumulated
  Amortization) 309,988
  Security Deposit 4,415

      TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 325,594

      TOTAL ASSETS   1,126,881

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
   Accounts Payable   16,586
   Accrued Payroll and Related Liabilities 18,311
   Accrued Interest Payable 1,313
   Compensated Absences 41,054
   Unearned Grant Revenue 220,234
   Lease Payable - Current Portion 26,493

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 323,991

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
   Lease Payable 288,190

      TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES 288,190

      TOTAL LIABILITIES   612,181

NET POSITION

   Net Investment in Property and Equipment 11,191
   Unrestricted 503,509       

TOTAL NET POSITION  $ 514,700

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

(5)
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Exhibit II

OPERATING REVENUES
   Federal, state and other grants $ 837,450
   Local communities - annual assessments 81,999
   Other income 52,092

 
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 971,541

OPERATING EXPENSES
   Salaries and wages 442,565
   Payroll taxes and employee benefits 167,157
   Consultants and contract services 183,869
   Other operating expenses 140,004
   Depreciation and amortization expense 28,567

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 962,162

OPERATING INCOME 9,379

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
   Interest Expense (12,661)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (3,282)

BEGINNING NET POSITION 517,982

ENDING NET POSITION $ 514,700

CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

(6)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
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Exhibit III

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
   Cash received from grants, contracts and services $ 1,182,586
   Cash received from local communities 81,999
   Cash paid for goods and services (332,922)
   Cash paid for personnel (633,578)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 298,085

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 0

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
 FINANCING ACTIVITIES  
   Property and Equipment Purchase (2,597)
   Lease Interest Paid (11,348)
   Lease Principal Paid (20,439)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (34,384)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 0

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 263,701

BEGINNING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 352,519

ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 616,220

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)  TO 
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to 
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

 Operating Income $ 9,379
 Depreciation  and Amortization 28,567
 (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 74,495
 (Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 696

    Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable (9,745)
 Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued Payroll and Related Liabilities (12,495)
 Increase/(Decrease) in Compensated Absences (11,361)
 Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Grant Revenue 218,549

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 298,085
 

 

CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

(7)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022  

 (8) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission (CVRPC) is one of 11 regional planning 
commissions in Vermont.  CVRPC was organized under Title 24 Vermont Statutes Annotated 
(V.S.A.), Chapter 117 in 1967 to promote the mutual cooperation of its member municipalities and 
to facilitate the appropriate development and preservation of the physical and human resources in 
these municipalities.   
 
The mission of the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission is to act as the principal forum 
for planning, policy and community development in the region. CVRPC will do this by providing 
planning and technical assistance that meets the needs of the member municipalities and the public, 
while remaining consistent with federal and state requirements. CVRPC work will result in the 
development and implementation of plans that support sustainable development and improve the 
region’s quality of life and environment. 
 
1)  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
The Financial Reporting Entity 
 
This report includes all of the funds of CVRPC.  The reporting entity consists of the primary 
government; organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable; and other 
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary 
government are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to 
be misleading or incomplete.  Component units are legally separate organizations for which the 
elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable.  The primary government is 
financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and is 
able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide 
specific financial benefits to or impose financial burdens on the primary government.  The primary 
government is financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on and there is a 
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial 
burdens on the primary government, regardless of whether the organization has a separately elected 
governing board; a governing board appointed by a higher level of government; or a jointly 
appointed board.  Based on these criteria, there are no other entities that should be combined with 
the financial statements of CVRPC. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
CVRPC reports itself as a business-type activity as defined in GASB 34.   
 
Operating revenues include grant revenue, project and community match revenues, and consulting 
revenues and result from transactions associated with the principal activities of the organization.  
Nonoperating revenues, such as investment earnings result from nonexchange transactions or 
ancillary activities.   
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CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022  

 (9) 

 
 
Measurement Focus 
 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied is determined by the measurement focus.  
The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.  This 
means that all assets, liabilities and deferred inflows and outflows of resources (whether current or 
noncurrent) are included on the statement of net position.  Fund equity (i.e. net total position) is 
segregated into net investment in property and equipment, restricted and unrestricted net position.  
Operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in total net 
position.   
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
Business type activities are accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus using the 
accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when they are earned, including unbilled 
services which are accrued.  Expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 
 
Under the terms of grant agreements, CVRPC funds certain programs by a combination of specific 
cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues.  Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there 
are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program.  It is CVRPC’s 
policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by general 
revenues.  Expenditures driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures 
have been incurred and other grant requirements have been met. 
 
Donated Services     
 
Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission receives noncash contributions in the form of 
member communities and other organizations performing various planning tasks to assist the 
Organization.  These in-kind contributions are used as match for grants at an estimated hourly rate 
or the actual billing rate, if available.  These contributions are not recorded in the financial 
statements of the Organization.   
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, CVRPC considers all unrestricted highly-liquid 
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.   
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are reported at actual cost. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are 
capitalized as purchased.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value 
of the asset or materially extend the assets’ lives are not capitalized. Central Vermont Regional 
Planning Commission does not own major general infrastructure assets. 
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CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022  
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Capital assets are depreciated in order that the cost of these assets will be charged to expenses over 
their estimated services lives of three to ten years, using the straight-line method of calculating 
depreciation. 
 
CVRPC capitalizes any item with an original cost of $5,000 or more and with a useful life of greater 
than one year. 
 
Right to Use Leased Assets 
 
CVRPC has recorded the right to use leased assets as a result of implementing GASB 87.  The right 
to use assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement of the related lease 
liability plus any lease payments made prior to the lease term, less lease incentives, and plus 
ancillary charges necessary to place the lease in service.  The right to use assets are amortized over 
the life of the related lease.  CVRPC records the right to use leased assets and the related liability 
for any noncancellable leases with terms exceeding 12 months which management deems material. 
 
Long Term Liabilities 
 
Long Term Liabilities includes CVRPC’s liability for future minimum lease payments measured at 
the net present value of the payments using its incremental borrowing rate. 
 
New Accounting Standard - Leases 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87 “Leases” was implemented 
by CVRPC effective July 1, 2021.  This Statement replaces the previous lease accounting 
methodology and establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational 
principle that leases are a financing of the right to use an underlying asset.  GASB 87 requires 
CVRPC to record assets and liabilities for most leasing arrangements with terms exceeding 12 
months. The leased asset is amortized over the lease term and the lease payments include interest 
expense and reduce the liability. Implementation of this new standard did not affect net position as 
of July 1, 2021. 
 
2)  CASH  
 
Cash consists of deposits with financial institutions and was $616,220 at June 30, 2022.  CVRPC 
has a policy that requires cash to be deposited with financial institutions with an office in Vermont.  
Also, the policy requires limiting custodial credit risk by requiring the deposits to be covered by 
depository insurance or collateral. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for 
investments is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counter-party (e.g. broker-dealer) to a 
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in possession of another party.  The Organization’s deposits are exposed to 
custodial credit risk as follows: 

01/03/23 13



CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022  
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Book Bank
Balance Balance

FDIC or NCUA Insured $ 579,663 $ 581,518
Uninsured, Uncollateralized 36,557 36,557

Total $ 616,220 $ 618,075

 
The difference between the book and bank balances are reconciling items, primarily outstanding 
checks.  
 
3)  RECEIVABLES 
 
Receivables consist of amounts due from grants, contracts and other items.  Central Vermont 
Regional Planning Commission uses the allowance method for uncollectible receivables. 
Management has reviewed the accounts and determined that an allowance for doubtful accounts of 
$0 is appropriate at June 30, 2022. 
 
Receivables are comprised of the following: 
 

Grants and Contracts $ 158,332   
Municipal Services and Other 7,666

      Total $ 165,998

 
4)  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Property and Equipment balances were as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

     Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
          Office Furniture and Equipment $ 47,030 $ 0 $ 0 $ 47,030
          Leasehold Improvements 0 2,597 0 2,597
          Less Accumulated Depreciation (35,003) (3,433) 0 (38,436)
 
Capital Assets, Net at June 30, 2022 $ 12,027 $ (836) $ 0 $ 11,191
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022  
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5) RIGHT TO USE LEASED ASSETS 
 
CVRPC has one Right to Use Leased Asset for its office in Montpelier, Vermont.  See Note 10 for 
details of the related lease liability. The right to use the leased asset is amortized on a straight-line 
basis over 120 months, the life of the lease entered into on October 1, 2021.  
 
The Right to Use Leased Asset has activity as follows for the year ended June 30, 2022: 
 
Implementation of GASB 87, October 1, 2021     $335,122 
 
Less: Amortization            (25,134) 
 
Balance, June 30         $309,988 
 
6)  UNEARNED GRANT REVENUE 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, CVRPC had received grant funds that have not yet been spent for 
the intended purpose.  These funds will be spent in fiscal year 2023 and recognized as revenue: 
 
Vermont Department of Environmental  
 Conservation - Plainfield Gully $  61,680 
ACCD – Pandemic Response and Energy -  113,432 
Mt. Ascutney Regional Commission 42,937 
Other      2,185  
 
     Total Unearned Grant Revenue $ 220,234 
 
7) FEDERAL STATE AND OTHER GRANTS  
 
Federal, State and Other Grants consist of the following: 

Public Safety  $ 69,075
Natural Resources 223,622
AOT - Transportation 213,380
ACCD 311,426
Community Development 19,947
        Total $ 837,450

 
8) RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
Defined Contribution Plan 
 
The Commission established a Simplified Employee Pension (SEP) plan under which up to 5% of 
salary or wages is contributed quarterly to individual retirement accounts for each employee.  The 
Plan was established on July 13, 1993 and covers all full-time employees with one (1) year of 
employment with the Commission.  The plan was funded at 5% for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2022 and contributions totaled $17,350.  The Commission’s total payroll for the year ending June 
30, 2022 was $442,702 of which $347,000 was covered by the plan. 
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9)  LINE OF CREDIT 
 
The Commission established a line of credit with a bank dated October 26, 2018, with a maximum 
available of $100,000.  Interest is charged at prime plus 2%.  The purpose of the loan is to fund 
working capital and grants receivable.  The line has been extended to November 1, 2023.  There is 
no balance owed on the line at June 30, 2022.  The line is collateralized by all assets of the 
Commission. 
 
10) LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS – LEASES 
 
CVRPC has entered into an agreement to lease its office.  This lease qualifies as a lease other than a 
short-term lease under Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 87 “Leases”.  
As required by GASB 87, the present value of the future minimum lease payments have been 
recorded as liabilities as of the date of the lease inception. 
 
The office lease was executed October 1, 2021 and is for ten years. Monthly payments are 
$3,531.85 through September 2026 and then increase to $3,642.37 for the remainder of the lease. 
The lease liability is measured at a discount rate of 5.3%, which is CVRPC’s incremental borrowing 
rate. The lease liability results in a right-to-use asset with a net book value of $309,988 as of June 
30, 2022 (see Note 5).  The lease liability is $314,683 at June 30, 2022, of which $26,493 is current 
and $288,390 due after June 30, 2023. 
 
Year Ending Principal Interest
June 30 Payments Payments Total

2023 $ 26,493 $ 15,889 $ 42,382
2024 27,918 14,465 42,383
2025 29,419 12,963 42,382
2026 31,001 11,381 42,382
2027 33,681 9,696 43,377
Thereafter 166,171 19,589 185,760

 
Total $ 314,683 $ 83,983 $ 398,666

 
11)  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
CVRPC is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  CVRPC maintains 
insurance coverage covering each of those risks of loss.  Management believes such coverage is 
sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to CVRPC.  Settled claims have not exceeded 
this coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
12)  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES     
 
Grants and contracts require the fulfillment of certain conditions set forth in the grant or contract.  
Failure to fulfill the conditions could result in the return of funds to the grantors.  Although that is a 
possibility, management deems the contingency remote, since by accepting the awards and their 
terms, it has accommodated the objectives of CVRPC to the provisions of the grants. 
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Schedule 1

CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF OPERATIONS 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
OPERATING REVENUES
   State of Vermont - Agency of Commerce and Community   
    Development (ACCD) $ 318,064 $ 311,426 $ (6,638)
   Community Development Grants 25,044 19,947 (5,097)
   Natural Resources Grants 224,012 223,622 (390)
   Public Safety Grants 66,901 69,075 2,174
   Transportation Grants 240,490 213,380 (27,110)
   Municipal Contracts 31,322 37,243 5,921
   Local Communities - Annual Assessments 81,999 81,999 0
   Other Income 12,500 14,849 2,349

   
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,000,332 971,541 (28,791)

OPERATING EXPENSES
   Salaries and Wages 477,020 442,565 34,455
   Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 150,711 167,157 (16,446)
   Advertising 0 4,431 (4,431)
   Consultants and Contract Services 197,519 183,869 13,650
   Office Occupancy 47,523 43,614 3,909
   Copy and Printing 4,111 4,237 (126)
   Depreciation 3,433 3,433 0
   Dues and Memberships 10,795 9,962 833
   Insurance 4,954 6,092 (1,138)
   Other 5,730              3,141 2,589
   Program Workshops and Meetings 2,920 2,152 768
   Professional Services 74,500 65,334 9,166
   Software and Licenses 12,901 9,400 3,501
   Supplies 15,348 14,132 1,216
   Telephone and Internet 7,080 6,857 223
   Travel 3,197 2,439 758

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES - BUDGETARY BASIS 1,017,742 968,815 48,927

OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) - BUDGETARY BASIS $ (17,410)  2,726 $ 20,136

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis:
  Amortization of Right to Use Leased Asset (25,134)
  Base Rent Paid 31,787

Operating Income - GAAP Basis $ 9,379

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Schedule 2

Allowable
Direct Unallowable Indirect 

Total Costs Costs (a) Costs

   Salaries and Wages $ 442,565 $ 270,031 $ 2,491 $ 170,043
   Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 167,157 69,121 771 97,265
   Advertising 4,431 206 0 4,225
   Consultants and Contract Services 183,869 183,869 0 0  
   Office Occupancy 49,622 0 0 49,622
   Copy and Printing 4,237 0 0 4,237
   Depreciation 3,433 0 0 3,433
   Dues and Memberships 9,962 285 5,932 3,745  
   Insurance 6,092 0 0 6,092  
   Other 3,141 1,325 293 1,523  
   Program Workshops and Meetings 2,152 1,445 487 220  
   Professional Services 65,334 4,800 0 60,534  
   Software and Licenses 9,400 0 0 9,400  
   Supplies 14,132 0 0 14,132  
   Telephone and Internet 6,857 0 0 6,857  
   Travel 2,439 1,986 61 392  

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 974,823 $ 533,068 $ 10,035 $ 431,720

(a)  Costs Not Allowed under 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

See  Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.

CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

(15)

01/03/23 18



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial  

Statements Performed in Accordance with “Government Auditing Standards” 
 
 
 
Board of Commissioners  
Central Vermont Regional 
 Planning Commission 
29 Main Street, Suite 4 
Montpelier, VT 05602 
 
 We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in “Government 
Auditing Standards” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2022 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Central 
Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated December 20, 2022. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
 In planning and performing the audit, we considered the Central Vermont Regional 
Planning Commission’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Central Vermont Regional 
Planning Commission’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s internal 
control over financial reporting. 
 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, 
to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
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Central Vermont Regional 
 Planning Commission    -2- 
 
 
 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  Given these limitations, during our audit 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
 As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Central Vermont 
Regional Planning Commission’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we 
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
“Government Auditing Standards”. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
 The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performing in accordance with “Government 
Auditing Standards” in considering the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s internal 
control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
December 20, 2022 
Montpelier, Vermont 
VT Lic. #92-000180 
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December 20, 2022 
 

 
Board of Commissioners  
Central Vermont Regional 
 Planning Commission 
29 Main Street, Suite 4 
Montpelier, VT 05602 
 

We have audited the financial statements of the Central Vermont Regional Planning 
Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 20, 2022.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
“Government Auditing Standards”, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, in accordance with 

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Central 
Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as 
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Central Vermont Regional 
Planning Commission’s internal control. 

 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 

allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.   
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Central Vermont Regional 
 Planning Commission    -2-    December 20, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the second 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified.  In addition, because of inherent limitations in internal control, 
including the possibility of management override of controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected by such controls.  Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
 

However, we noted other matters during our audit as indicated in the accompanying 
Schedule of Recommendations that are opportunities for strengthening internal control and operating 
efficiency.  We have discussed the recommendations with the staff during the course of fieldwork and 
some of the recommendations may have already been implemented 

 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the 

Board of Commissioners and others within the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission, and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.    
 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the staff of the Central Vermont Regional 
Planning Commission for their assistance and cooperativeness throughout our audit.  It has been a 
pleasure working with you. 
 
   

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
        SULLIVAN, POWERS & CO. 
        Certified Public Accountants 
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CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

SCHEDULE OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 
 
Electronic Timesheets 

 
Employees enter their time charged to grants and other programs electronically. These 

timesheets are a supporting document for the expenditures of these programs. The employees’ 
supervisors review the timesheets but this review is not documented.  
 
  We recommend that the approval of the timesheets be documented and the approved 
documents be saved as support for the program expenditures. 
 
 
Approval of Journal Entries 
 
  The contract bookkeeper makes journal entries every month in QuickBooks to record and 
allocate financial transactions. Since journal entries are transactions outside the normal cash receipts and 
cash disbursement process, management should be aware of and authorize these adjustments. 
 
  We recommend that the bookkeepers provide a journal entry report monthly for 
management’s review.   An officer, such as the Treasurer or Executive Director, should review and 
approve the journal entries. The approved journal entries should be kept on file. 
 
 
Documentation of Internal Control System 
 
  A solid understanding of internal control is essential.  An organization must continually 
assess their internal control systems to ensure accurate financial reporting and compliance with laws and 
regulations.  The Commission has documented its control systems in an Administrative and Financial 
Policies and Procedures document. 

 
 We recommend that the Commission update its document to break out the internal 

control process into the following five areas: 
 

1. Control Environment – Sets the tone of an organization and is the foundation for all 
other components. 

 
2. Risk Assessment – The identification and analysis of relevant risks to achieve its 

objectives forming a basis for how risks should be managed. 
 

3. Control Activities – The policies and procedures that help ensure management 
directives are carried out. 

 
4. Information and Communication – The identification, capture and exchange of 

information in a form and timeframe that enables people to carry out their 
responsibilities. 

 
5. Monitoring – The process that assesses the quality of internal control performance 

over time. 
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December 20, 2022 
 
 
Board of Commissioners  
Central Vermont Regional 
 Planning Commission 
29 Main Street, Suite 4 
Montpelier, VT 05602 
 

We have audited the financial statements of the Central Vermont Regional 
Planning Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and have issued our report 
thereon dated December 20, 2022.  Professional standards require that we provide you with 
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and 
“Government Auditing Standards”, as well as certain information related to the planned scope 
and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter to 
you dated April 22, 2022. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 

 
Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government 
Auditing Standards 
 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Central Vermont 
Regional Planning Commission. Such considerations were solely for the purpose of determining 
our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 
 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we also performed tests of the Central Vermont Regional 
Planning Commission’s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective 
of our audit. 
 
  Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  We are 
responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting 
process.  However, we are not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters. 
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Central Vermont Regional 
 Planning Commission -2- December 20, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
Planned Scope of the Audit 
 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope previously communicated 
to you in our engagement letter.  
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting 

policies. The significant accounting policies used by the Central Vermont Regional Planning 
Commission are described in Note I to the financial statements. The Central Vermont Regional 
Planning Commission adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 87 “Leases”.  No other new accounting policies were adopted and the 
application of existing policies was not changed during the year.  We noted no transactions 
entered into by the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission during the year for which 
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been 
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 
 
 Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by 
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current 
events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly 
sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility 
that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most 
sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were the allowance for uncollectible 
accounts receivable and the useful lives of property, plant and equipment used to compute 
depreciation. 
 
 Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable 
and the useful lives of property, plant and equipment used to compute depreciation are based on 
an analysis of the aging of receivables and the nature of the items.  We evaluated the key factors 
and assumptions used to develop the allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable and the 
useful lives of property, plant and equipment used to compute depreciation in determining that 
they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
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Central Vermont Regional 
 Planning Commission -3- December 20, 2022 
 
 
 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 

 Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and 
communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such 
misstatements.  None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected 
by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to  the financial statements 
taken as a whole. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could 
be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no 
such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in 
the management representation letter dated December 20, 2022. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about 
auditing and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If 
a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting 
principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to our acceptance as the 
Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission’s auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our acceptance. 
 
Other Matters 
 
  Management has omitted Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion on the financial 
statements is not affected by this missing information. 
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Central Vermont Regional 
 Planning Commission -4- December 20, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     
 
   We were engaged to report on the Schedule of Operations – Budget and Actual 
and  Schedule of Direct and Indirect Costs which accompany the financial statements but are not 
RSI.  With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management 
and evaluated the form, content and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information 
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.  We also 
compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
Restriction on Use 

 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Commissioners 

management of the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission and is not intended to be, 
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
 

SULLIVAN, POWERS & CO. 
Certified Public Accountants 
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 MEMO  
 
Date: December 20, 2022 
To: Executive Committee 
From: Christian Meyer, Acting Executive Director 
Re: Contract/Agreement Approvals 
 
 

GRANTS, CONTRACTS & SERVICE AGREEMENTS RECEVIED 
(Contracts and agreements valued at more than $25,000) 
 
DuBois & King, Inc. – Stormwater Final Design – Barre City Auditorium 
  ACTION REQUESTED:  Authorize the Acting Director to sign the agreement. 

 
Purpose:  To contract with DuBois & King to develop a 100% design for a subsurface sand filter to treat stormwater 
in Barre, VT. The project site is a 27.4-acre drainage area in the vicinity of the Barre City Auditorium with attached 
Alumni Hall (20 Auditorium Hill), the BOR Ice Arena (25 Auditorium Hill) and their associated parking lot. The final 
design is expected to prevent at least 24,000 pounds of suspended solids and 8.66 pounds of total phosphorous 
from entering receiving waters annually. 
 
Scope of Work:    

1. Attend project kick-off meeting and site visit with project partners. 
2. Summarize site and design considerations by identifying potential natural resource conflicts, permitting 

needs and contaminated soil or groundwater, securing a landowner letter of commitment, and describing 
the water quality improvement goals and objectives. 

3. Assess permit needs and permit feasibility for the site, including potential challenges or conflicts obtaining 
necessary permits. The contractor will confirm whether a stormwater permit under the proposed 3-acre 
impervious cover rule is required and whether the project qualifies for an Erosion Prevention and Sediment 
Control permit (3-9020) under the Low Risk categorization. 

4. Produce an intermediate (60%) design report. 
5. Meet with project stakeholders to review progress and solicit feedback. 
6. Identify the Operations & Maintenance responsible party. 
7. Produce a final (100%) design report. 
8. Prepare a completed application, including site plans and engineering feasibility analyses, and submit it to 

the DEC Stormwater Program for approval. 
 

Funding:   $34,703 
Performance Period:   Date of endorsement to December 1, 2023 
Staff:  Brian Voigt 
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Notes:   This project is funded by a Design Implementation Block Grant administered by the Mount Ascutney 
Regional Commission. CVRPC applied for and received funding to facilitate the 100% design of stormwater 
infrastructure at this site.  

 
Department of Buildings & General Services – Municipal Energy Resilience Grant Program Agreement 
  ACTION REQUESTED:  Authorize the Acting Director to sign the agreement. 

 
Purpose: In accordance with Act.172 Sec.3(2), Grant Program design: “The Department of Buildings and General 
Services, in consultation with Efficiency Vermont; the Vermont League of Cities and Towns; regional planning 
commissions; and experts in the field of thermal enclosure, energy efficiency, and renewable building space 
systems, shall design the Program.”  The purpose of this agreement is to set forth the financial commitments, 
respective responsibilities, and procedures necessary between the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission 
(RPC) and Vermont Department of Buildings and General Services (BGS) to support the development and 
administration of the Municipal Energy Resilience Grant Program. 
 
Scope of Work:     

1.  Education and Outreach – develop an outreach and education plan pertaining to Act 172 and municipal 
energy resilience to reach and support each covered municipality.   

2. Municipal Planning and Technical Assistance –  
a. Planning efforts to support BGS efforts to establish and maintain an equitable system for 

distributing implementation grants  
b. Grant and Assessment Application Technical Assistance – support covered municipalities in 

gathering all relevant and available documents for grant applications, energy assessments, and 
efficiency projects. 

c. Grant and Assessment Application Consultation – help municipalities prepare Municipal Energy 
Resilience Program grant applications. 

d. Energy Resilience Programming and Technical Assistance – provide technical assistance to covered 
municipalities. 

3. Reporting  
 
Funding: $216,716.42 (CVRPC’s share) 
Performance Period: Date of Endorsement to 06/30/2028   
Staff: Sam Lash 
Notes: Funding distributed to regional planning commissions as outlined: Fifty-five percent (55%) of the funds shall 
be divided equally among the regional planning commissions. Forty-five percent (45%) of the funds shall be 
allocated according to the number of Vermont member municipalities in each regional planning commission as of 
July 1, 2022. 
 

Department of Environmental Conservation Clean Water Service Provider – Start-up – No Cost Extension 
  ACTION REQUESTED:  Authorize the Acting Director to sign the no-cost extension. 
 

Scope of Work: Clean Water Service Provider (CWSP) Start Up: develop and maintain a website, set up subaward 
tracking processes, set up project tracking processes, set up accounting and legal services, develop CWSP policies, 
participate in meetings with the state to establish CWSP operations, and process invoices/direct billed 
administration. 
 
Funding:  $98,115.00 (State); $0 (Local) 
Performance Period:   10/05/21 - 12/31/2022 12/31/2023 
Staff:  Brian Voigt 
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Notes:   No cost time extension due to continued delays in publishing Act 76 Guidance Chapters. Three Guidance 
Chapters have been completed, but not formally adopted. The remaining eight chapters are in various stages of 
development. The Guidance Chapters contain details the CWSPs require to finish standing up the Clean Water 
Service Provider program. 
 

CONTRACTS ISSUED 
(Contracts and agreements valued at more than $25,000) 
N/A 
 

FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Contracts, agreements, and Stormwater Program addendums valued at $25,000 or less and site specific contract 
addendums for the Brownfields Program and task specific contract addendums for the Transportation Program) 

 
GRANTS, CONTRACTS & SERVICE AGREEMENTS RECEIVED 
N/A 
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Agreement # 2023-01 

1 

CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
Standard Contract 

Barre City Auditorium & Ice Rink 
Stormwater Final Design Project 

 

Part 1 – Contract Detail 
SECTION 1 - GENERAL CONTRACT INFORMATION 
Original     Amendment    #_____  
Contract Amount: 
$34,703 

Contract Start Date:  
01/04/2023 

Contract End Date: 
09/30/23 

Contractor Name: DuBois & King, Inc. 
Contractor Physical Address: 28 North Main Street 
City: Randolph State: VT Zip Code: 05060 
Contractor Mailing Address: PO Box 339 
City: Randolph State: VT Zip Code: 05060 
Contract Type:  Cost Reimbursement      Fixed Price        Other  (please specify) 
If this action is an amendment, the following is amended: 
   Funding Amount     Performance Period      Scope of Work  
   Other  (please specify)  
SECTION 2 – CONTRACTOR INFORMATION  
(to be completed by CVRPC) 
Contractor UEI:  SUL5KGAU5XL8 
DUNS/UEI Registered Name (if different than Contractor Name above): 
SAM checked for DUNS/UEI Suspension and Debarment Exclusions  
(https://sam.gov/SAM/ Print Screen Must be Placed in Contract File) 
     Date:  12/29/22 Initials: NLC SAM Expiration Date:  12/12/23 
State of Vermont checked for Debarment Exclusions 
   (http://bgs.vermont.gov/purchasing-contracting/debarment. Print Screen Must be 
Placed in Contract File) 
     Date: 12/28/22 Initials: BV Debarment Expiration Date:  N/A 
Risk Assessment completed (Risk Assessment_Contractor.docx). Staff completes 
assessment (Risk Assessment_Contractor.docx). Contractor responses and completed 
risk assessment placed in contract file. Contract modified to reflect assessment 
results.) 
     Date:   Initials:     
Single Audit check in Federal Audit Clearinghouse 
(https://harvester.census.gov/facdissem/Main.aspx. Print screen must be placed in 
contract file) 
     Date:   12/29/22 Initials: NLC 
IRS Form W9 - Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification 
(Contractor must complete a Form W-9. Form must be placed in contract file.) 
     Date: 12/29/22 Initials: NLC 
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Certificate of Insurance (Contractor must provide a valid Certificate of Insurance 
demonstrating compliance with minimum insurance requirements of the originating 
funding. If originating funding has none, default minimums are State of Vermont 
requirements.) 
     Date:     Initials:    
Will the Contractor Charge CVRPC for Taxable Purchases?   Yes      No  
[Provide written documentation of answer from contractor. If yes, CVRPC tax 
exemption certificate must be provided to contractor (obtain from CVRPC finance 
staff). CVRPC is not subject to sales tax.] 
     Date:   Initials:    
Contract Total Value exceeds $250,000?   Yes      No  
(Contractor must provide list of all proposed subcontractors and subcontractors’ 
subcontractors and the identity of those party’s worker compensation providers) 
     Date: 12/28/2022 Initials:  BV 
SECTION 3 – FUNDING SOURCE  
Awarding Entity: Mount Ascutney Regional Commission 
Contract #: CVRPC-2021DIBG-03 
Funding Type:  Federal CFDA/ALN #:  Program Title: 
  State  
  Municipal  
  Other Source: (ex. private, non-profit, etc.) 
SECTION 4 – CONTACT INFORMATION 
CVRPC CONTRACTOR 
Project Contact/Coordinator Project Contact/Manager 
   Name: Brian Voigt    Name: Christopher Rivet 
   Title: Senior Planner    Title: Project Manager 
   Work Phone: 802-262-1029    Work Phone: 802.728.3376 
   Email: voigt@cvregion.com    Cell Phone (if applicable):  

       Email: crivet@dubois-king.com 
 

Finance/Billing Finance/Billing 
   Name: Christian Meyer    Name: TBD 
   Title: Acting Executive Director    Title:   
   Work Phone: 802-229-0389    Work Phone:   
   Email: meyer@cvregion.com    Cell Phone (if applicable):  
       Email:   
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Part 2 – Contract Agreement 

 
STANDARD CONTRACT FOR SERVICES  
 
1. Parties. This is a contract for services between the Central Vermont Regional 

Planning Commission (hereafter called “CVRPC”) and DuBois & King, Inc. with its 
principal place of business at 28 North Main Street, Randolph, Vermont 05060 
(hereafter called “Contractor”). Contractor’s form of business organization is a 
Domestic Profit Corporation. It is the Contractor’s responsibility to contact the 
Vermont Department of Taxes to determine if, by law, the Contractor is required to 
have a Vermont Department of Taxes Business Account Number. 

2. Subject Matter. The subject matter of this contract is services generally on the 
subject of stormwater management engineering and design. Detailed services to be 
provided by the Contractor are described in Attachment A. 

3. Maximum Amount. In consideration of the services to be performed by Contractor, 
the CVRPC agrees to pay Contractor, in accordance with the payment provisions 
specified in Attachment B, a sum not to exceed $34,703.  

4. Contract Term. The period of Contractor’s performance shall begin on January 4, 
2023 and end on September 30, 2023.  

5. Prior Approvals. Approval by the Executive Director is required for all contracts. If 
approval by the CVRPC Executive Committee is required, (greater than $25,000), 
neither this contract nor any amendment to it is binding until it has been approved by 
the Committee. 
 

Approval by the Executive Committee  is /   is not required.  
  
6. Amendment. This contract represents the entire contract between the parties. No 

changes, modifications, or amendments in the terms and conditions of this contract 
shall be effective unless reduced to writing, numbered and signed by the duly 
authorized representatives of the CVRPC and Contractor. 

7. Cancellation. This contract may be canceled by either party by giving written notice 
at least 30 days in advance. 

8. Attachments. This contract consists of 23 pages including the following attachments 
which are incorporated herein:  

 
Attachment A - Scope of Work to be Performed  
Attachment B - Payment Provisions and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements 
Attachment C - Standard Agreement Provisions (effective date 02/26/18)  
Attachment E - Other Provisions (if applicable) 

 
9. Order of Precedence. Any ambiguity, conflict or inconsistency in the Contract 

Documents shall be resolved according to the following order of precedence: 
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1) Standard Contract 
2) Attachment E (if applicable) 
3) Attachment D (not applicable) 
4) Attachment C (Standard Agreement Provisions) 
5) Attachment A (Scope of Work to be Performed) 
6) List other attachments in order of precedence (not applicable) 
7) Attachment B (Payment Provisions and Monitoring and Reporting 

Requirements) 
 
WE THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THIS CONTRACT.  
 
For the CVRPC:  For the Contractor: 

Signature:    Signature:   

Name:  Christian Meyer  Name:   

Title:  Acting Executive Director  Title:   

Date:    Date:   
  

01/03/23 34



Agreement # 2023-01 

5 

ATTACHMENT A 
Scope of Work to be Performed 

 
Objective 
This project requires a Professional Engineer to develop a 100% design for a subsurface 
sand filter to treat stormwater in Barre, VT (05641). The project site is a 27.4-acre 
drainage area in the vicinity of the Barre City Auditorium with attached Alumni Hall (20 
Auditorium Hill), the BOR Ice Arena (25 Auditorium Hill) and their associated parking lot. 
The final design is expected to prevent at least 24,000 pounds of suspended solids and 
8.66 pounds of total phosphorous from entering receiving waters annually.  
 
Activities to be Performed 
TASK 1: ATTEND PROJECT KICK-OFF MEETING AND SITE VISIT 
The Selected Consultant shall attend a project kick-off meeting and site visit with CVRPC 
and Barre City staff to discuss the project timeline, division of labor, design plans, 
permit requirements, operations & maintenance (O&M) planning, and any other issues 
pertinent to the project. The meeting may be held in person or remotely at the 
discretion of the participants. CVRPC will schedule the meeting within two weeks of the 
contract start date. The Selected Consultant shall provide meeting minutes for the 
project kick-off meeting to CVRPC. 

 
TASK 2: IDENTIFIED SITE / DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS 
The Selected Consultant shall create a project map using the ANR Atlas Clean Water 
Initiative Program Grant Screening Layer, which identifies potential natural resource 
conflicts and permitting needs for a given area.1 The Selected Consultant shall secure a 
letter of landowner commitment and provide a project summary that identifies site / 
design considerations, natural resource constraints, water quality improvement 
objectives/goals, and natural resource constraints per the Engineering Feasibility 
Analysis criteria, including the existence of contaminated soil or groundwater. 
 
TASK 3: ASSESS PERMIT NEEDS AND PERMIT FEASIBILITY 
This project will likely require a stormwater permit under the proposed 3-acre 
impervious cover rule and does not have a current stormwater permit. The site should 
qualify for an Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control permit (3-9020) under the Low 
Risk categorization if the following guidelines are followed: a) Less than 2 acres of 
disturbance at any one time; b) All soils must be stabilized (temporary or final) within 7 
days; and c) Runoff from the site must pass through a 50’ vegetated buffer prior to 
entering any Water of the State. The Selected Consultant shall document any additional 
permit requirements for project implementation, including an indication of potential 
challenges or conflicts for obtaining said permit(s). 
                                                 
1 Project locator maps should be downloaded from the Atlas, and the maps should be submitted to DEC as 
a PDF. See the Application Manual, Appendix 1, for instructions on creating project locator maps. 
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TASK 4: 60% ENGINEERING DESIGN 
The Selected Consultant shall prepare an Intermediate Design Report which includes a 
synthesis of prior completed project deliverables, 60% design(s), cost-estimates, and 
nutrient (and flow, if applicable) reduction estimates using the STP Calculator. 
 
TASK 5: MEET WITH PROJECT STAKEHOLDERS 
The Selected Consultant shall organize a meeting with the Project Partners and other 
stakeholders and be responsible for providing a summary of the meeting(s) (i.e. meeting 
minutes), including meeting outcomes, planned actions, and potential co-benefits (if 
applicable). 
 
TASK 6: DETERMINE O&M RESPONSIBLE PARTY 
The Selected Consultant shall work with the Project Partners to identify the O&M 
responsible party. The Selected Consultant will provide necessary O&M documentation 
and a draft Operation and Maintenance Plan and Agreement2 based on the DEC O&M 
Plan and Agreement template. 
 
TASK 7: 100% DESIGN COMPLETE  
The Selected Consultant shall prepare a Final Design Report which includes a synthesis 
of prior completed project deliverables, 100% designs, written landowner commitment 
to implement project, and a final cost-estimate with a level-of-effort document.  
 
TASK 8: SUBMISSION OF PERMIT APPLICATION 
The Selected Consultant shall prepare a completed application, including site plans and 
engineering feasibility analyses, and submit it to the DEC Stormwater Program for 
approval. 
 
Performance Measures 

TASK DELIVERABLE DELIVERY 
DATE 

1 Kick-off Meeting 
& Site Visit 

Project Kick-off & Site Visit meeting 
minutes 

January 1, 2023 

2 Identified 
site/design 
considerations 

a) Locator map(s) with site photos 
b) Letter of landowner commitment  
c) Project summary identifying: 

i. site / design considerations, 
ii. natural resource constraints,  
iii. water quality improvement 

objectives/goals, and natural 
resource constraints 

February 1, 2023 

                                                 
2 The DEC Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Plan and Agreement is a required form for implementation 
projects receiving Clean Water Initiative Program funds. Use the DEC O&M Plan and Agreement template 
to complete this task. 
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TASK DELIVERABLE DELIVERY 
DATE 

3 Assess permit 
needs and 
permit 
feasibility 

a) Documentation of additional required 
permits 

b) Indication of potential challenges / 
conflicts for obtaining permit 

February 1, 2023 

4 60% 
Engineering 
Design 

Intermediate Design Report: 
i. synthesis of prior completed 

project deliverables,  
ii. 60% designs,  
iii. cost-estimates, and  
iv. nutrient (and flow, if 

applicable) reduction estimates 
using STP Calculator 

March 15, 2023 

5 Meet with 
project 
stakeholders 

Meeting minutes, including: 
i. meeting outcomes,  
ii. planned actions, and 
iii. potential co-benefit(s) 

April 1, 2023 

6 Determine O&M 
responsible 
party 

a) Documentation of O&M responsible 
party 

b) Draft Operation & Maintenance Plan 
and Agreement 

April 15, 2023 

7 100% design 
complete  
 

Final Design Report, including: 
i. synthesis of prior completed 

project deliverables 
ii. 100% design(s) 
iii. written landowner commitment 

to implement project 
iv. final cost-estimate with a level-

of-effort document 

June 1, 2023 

8 Submission of 
permit 
application 

Submit completed permit application, 
site plans, and engineering Final Design 
to DEC Stormwater Program for 
approval 

July 1, 2023 
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ATTACHMENT B 
Payment Provisions and Monitoring and Reporting 

Requirements 
 

PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
The Contractor shall provide the services listed in Attachment A to CVRPC at the rates 
listed in the Scope of Work attached to this Agreement.  
 
The maximum dollar amount payable under this Agreement is not intended as any form 
of a guaranteed amount. The Contractor will be paid for products or services actually 
delivered or performed, as specified in Attachment A, up to the maximum allowable 
amount specified on page 1 of the Standard Contract.  
 
CVRPC agrees to compensate the Contractor for services performed as defined in the 
Scope of Work, up to the maximum amount, provided such services are within the scope 
of the Agreement and are authorized as provided for under the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement.  
 
Payment. Work performed will be paid as follows:  
 

FIXED PRICE (DELIVERABLES): The Contractor shall submit invoices to the CVRPC 
in accordance with the following schedule: 

 
TASK DELIVERABLE DELIVERY 

DATE 
COST 

1 Kick-off Meeting 
& Site Visit 

Project Kick-off & Site Visit meeting 
minutes 

January 1, 2023  

2 Identified 
site/design 
considerations 

a) Locator map(s) with site photos 
b) Letter of landowner commitment  
c) Project summary identifying: 

i. site / design considerations, 
ii. natural resource constraints,  
iii. water quality improvement 

objectives/goals, and natural 
resource constraints 

February 1, 2023  

3 Assess permit 
needs and 
permit 
feasibility 

a) Documentation of additional required 
permits 

b) Indication of potential challenges / 
conflicts for obtaining permit 

February 1, 2023  
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TASK DELIVERABLE DELIVERY 
DATE 

COST 

4 60% 
Engineering 
Design 

Intermediate Design Report: 
i. synthesis of prior completed 

project deliverables,  
ii. 60% designs,  
iii. cost-estimates, and  
iv. nutrient (and flow, if 

applicable) reduction estimates 
using STP Calculator 

March 15, 2023  

5 Meet with 
project 
stakeholders 

Meeting minutes, including: 
i. meeting outcomes,  
ii. planned actions, and 
iii. potential co-benefit(s) 

April 1, 2023  

6 Determine O&M 
responsible 
party 

a) Documentation of O&M responsible 
party 

b) Draft Operation & Maintenance Plan 
and Agreement 

April 15, 2023  

7 100% design 
complete  
 

Final Design Report, including: 
i. synthesis of prior completed 

project deliverables 
ii. 100% design(s) 
iii. written landowner commitment 

to implement project 
iv. final cost-estimate with a level-

of-effort document 

June 1, 2023  

8 Submission of 
permit 
application 

Submit completed permit application, 
site plans, and engineering Final Design 
to DEC Stormwater Program for 
approval 

July 1, 2023  

 
The CVRPC shall pay, or cause to be paid, to the Contractor progress payments as 
defined above. Requests for payment shall be accompanied by progress reports and be 
made directly to the CVRPC for all work.  
 
The CVRPC shall pay for all approved services, expenses and materials accomplished or 
used during the period of this Agreement, and only that effort will be included on 
invoices under this Agreement. Invoices for costs should be itemized in accordance with 
the payment provisions described previously in Attachment B. 
 
The Contractor shall immediately notify CVRPC if costs for the performance of any task 
exceeds, or is expected to exceed, the written estimate. In the case of a cost 
reimbursement agreement, the Contractor will supply a new cost estimate for CVRPC 
approval. CVRPC is not obligated to authorize additional expenditures. The Contractor 
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will not be reimbursed for any services or expenses which have not been previously 
approved by CVRPC.  
 
Sub-contractor rates shall be consistent with those provided in Contractor’s Scope of 
Work. Markups for sub-contractors will not exceed 10%. Markups for equipment, regular 
site costs (such as utilities) and primary Contractor services (such as telephone calls, 
copying, mailing costs, meals, lodging) are not allowed under this Agreement.  
 
Invoicing. The Contractor shall submit invoices to CVRPC as noted above. Charges will 
be separated by task as designated by CVRPC in proposal or bid documents and shall 
include the estimated task amount and total charges billed by task to date. If the 
Contractor is working under more than one Agreement with CVRPC, the Contractor shall 
invoice each Agreement separately. Progress reports shall accompany all invoices and 
shall describe work completed during the invoice period. 
 
All invoices shall be sent to:  CVRPC Executive Director  

29 Main Street, Suite 4 
Montpelier, VT 05602  

 
The CVRPC will seek to make payments within forty-five (45) days of receipt of an 
invoice from the Contractor. If the work described in any invoice has not been completed 
to the satisfaction of CVRPC, as determined by the Project Manager, CVRPC reserves the 
right to withhold payment until the invoiced work has been satisfactorily completed. 
Overdue balances resulting from non-payment for unsatisfactory work will not be subject 
to interest or finance charges. The final payment will be paid upon final project 
completion and acceptance by the CVRPC. 
 

MONITORING REQUIREMENTS 
Monitoring is REQUIRED under this Agreement. Monitoring will include: 
 

• Monitoring of pass through requirements. 
• Comparison of actual accomplishments to Agreement objectives. 
• Reasons why established goals were not met. 
• Explanation of cost overruns or high unit costs.  
• Significant developments. 
• Site visits as warranted by program needs. 

 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
Reporting is REQUIRED under this Agreement.  
 

• Regular Progress Reports submitted with invoices. 
• Significant developments as soon as possible after they occur. 
• Other reports as may be required by the funding agency. 
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Regular Progress Reporting. Accompanying each invoice will be a succinct and specific 
report on the progress that has been achieved on the Contractor’s Scope of Work with 
regard to milestones, deliverables, and schedule, and in relation to the expenditures the 
Contractor is invoicing for reimbursement. 
 
Significant Development Report. The Contractor must report the following events by e-
mail to CVRPC’s Project Manager as soon as possible after they occur: 
 

1) Developments that have a significant favorable impact on the project. 
2) Problems, delays, or adverse conditions which materially impair the Contractor’s 

ability to meet the objectives of the award. 
 
Other Reports. CVRPC’s funding agency may request or require other reports during the 
Agreement period. If CVRPC’s requires the Contractor’s assistance to complete this 
reporting, the Contractor shall provide the necessary information requested by CVRPC. 
 
CVRPC must submit quarterly  reports to the Mount Ascutney Regional Commission. It is 
imperative that the Contractor supply the CVRPC with the necessary information so that 
the CVRPC can provide these reports in a timely manner.  
 
Periodic reports, certified by an authorized agent of the Contractor, shall be submitted 
as required. Failure to submit timely, accurate, and fully executed reports shall 
constitute an “Event of Default” and will result in a mandate to return the funds already 
disbursed under this agreement, and/or the withholding of current and future payments 
under this Agreement until the reporting irregularities are resolved to the CVRPC’s 
satisfaction. 
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ATTACHMENT C 
Standard Agreement Provisions 

 
1. Definitions: For purposes of this Attachment, “Party” shall mean the Contractor, 

Grantee or Sub-Recipient, with whom the CVRPC is executing this Agreement and 
consistent with the form of the Agreement. “Agreement” shall mean the specific 
contract or grant to which this form is attached. 

 
2. Entire Agreement: This Agreement, whether in the form of a Contract, State 

Funded Grant, or Federally Funded Grant, represents the entire agreement between 
the parties on the subject matter. All prior agreements, representations, statements, 
negotiations, and understandings shall have no effect. 

 
3. Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue; No Waiver of Jury Trial: This 

Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Vermont. Any action or 
proceeding brought by either the CVRPC, the State or the Party in connection with 
this Agreement shall be brought and enforced in the Superior Court of the State of 
Vermont, Civil Division, Washington Unit. The Party irrevocably submits to the 
jurisdiction of this court for any action or proceeding regarding this Agreement. The 
Party agrees that it must first exhaust any applicable administrative remedies with 
respect to any cause of action that it may have against the CVRPC with regard to its 
performance under the Agreement. 

 
4. Arbitration: The parties agree that any dispute under this Agreement shall be 

resolved by final and binding arbitration in Washington County, Vermont, under the 
then-existing and applicable commercial arbitration rules of the American Arbitration 
Association. Without intending to limit the power of authority of the arbitrator(s) in 
any such proceeding, the parties hereby consent and agree that such arbitrator(s) 
shall be vested with the full power and authority to order such equitable relief as the 
arbitrator(s) may deem proper. The parties consent to the jurisdiction of any court of 
competent jurisdiction for all purposes with respect to such arbitration, including 
enforcement of this Agreement to arbitrate and the entry of a judgment on any 
arbitration award. The prevailing party in any such arbitration proceeding shall be 
entitled to an award of reasonable attorney’s fees as determined by the arbitrator(s). 
The fees and expenses of the arbitrator(s) shall be borne equally by the Parties. The 
Parties shall use all reasonable efforts to ensure that the arbitration is completed as 
promptly as reasonably possible, and in any event, within not more than ninety (90) 
days after either party’s request for arbitration hereunder. 

 
The undersigned understand that this agreement contains an agreement to arbitrate. 
After signing this document, both parties understand that neither will not be able to 
bring a lawsuit concerning any dispute that may arise which is covered by the 
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arbitration agreement, unless it involves a question of constitutional or civil rights. 
Instead, the parties agree to submit any such dispute to an impartial arbitrator. 

 
Party agrees that the State of Vermont shall not be required to submit to binding 
arbitration or waive its right to a jury trial. 

 
5. Severability: The provisions of this Agreement are severable. Should one or more 

provisions be unenforceable, all other provisions will remain in full force and effect. 
  
6. Sovereign Immunity: The State of Vermont reserves all immunities, defenses, 

rights or actions arising out of the State’s sovereign status or under the Eleventh 
Amendment to the United States Constitution. No waiver of the State’s immunities, 
defenses, rights or actions shall be implied or otherwise deemed to exist by reason of 
the State’s entry into this Agreement. 

 
7. No Employee Benefits For Party: The Party understands that the CVRPC and the 

State will not provide any individual retirement benefits, group life insurance, group 
health and dental insurance, vacation or sick leave, workers compensation or other 
benefits or services available to CVRPC or State employees, nor will the CVRPC or the 
State withhold any state or federal taxes except as required under applicable tax 
laws, which shall be determined in advance of execution of the Agreement. The Party 
understands that all tax returns required by the Internal Revenue Code and the State 
of Vermont, including but not limited to income, withholding, sales and use, and 
rooms and meals, must be filed by the Party, and information as to Agreement 
income will be provided by the CVRPC to the Internal Revenue Service and the 
Vermont Department of Taxes. 

 
8. Independence: The Party will act in an independent capacity and not as officers or 

employees of the CVRPC or the State of Vermont. 
 
9. Defense and Indemnity: The Party shall defend the CVRPC and the State and their 

officers and employees against all third party claims or suits arising in whole or in 
part from any act or omission of the Party or of any agent of the Party in connection 
with the performance of this Agreement. The CVRPC or the State shall notify the 
Party in the event of any such claim or suit, and the Party shall immediately retain 
counsel and otherwise provide a complete defense against the entire claim or suit. 
The CVRPC and the State retains the right to participate at their own expense in the 
defense of any claim. The CVRPC and the State shall have the right to approve all 
proposed settlements of such claims or suits.  

 
After a final judgment or settlement, the Party may request recoupment of specific 
defense costs and may file suit in Washington Superior Court requesting recoupment. 
The Party shall be entitled to recoup costs only upon a showing that such costs were 
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entirely unrelated to the defense of any claim arising from an act or omission of the 
Party in connection with the performance of this Agreement. 
 
The Party shall indemnify the CVRPC and the State of Vermont and their respective 
officers and employees in the event that the CVRPC or the State, their officers or 
employees become legally obligated to pay any damages or losses arising from any 
act or omission of the Party or an agent of the Party in connection with the 
performance of this Agreement.   
 
Notwithstanding any contrary language anywhere, in no event shall the terms of this 
Agreement or any document furnished by the Party in connection with its 
performance obligate the CVRPC or the State to (1) defend or indemnify the Party or 
any third party, or (2) otherwise be liable for the expenses or reimbursement, 
including attorneys’ fees, collection costs or other costs of the Party or any third 
party.  

 
10. Insurance: Before commencing work on this Agreement the Party must provide 

certificates of insurance to show that the following minimum coverages are in effect. 
It is the responsibility of the Party to maintain current certificates of insurance on file 
with the CVRPC through the term of the Agreement. No warranty is made that the 
coverages and limits listed herein are adequate to cover and protect the interests of 
the Party for the Party’s operations. These are solely minimums that have been 
established to protect the interests of the CVRPC and the State of Vermont. 

 
Workers Compensation: With respect to all operations performed, the Party shall 
carry workers’ compensation insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Vermont. Vermont will accept an out-of-state employer's workers’ compensation 
coverage while operating in Vermont provided that the insurance carrier is licensed to 
write insurance in Vermont and an amendatory endorsement is added to the policy 
adding Vermont for coverage purposes. Otherwise, the party shall secure a Vermont 
workers’ compensation policy, if necessary to comply with Vermont law. 
 
General Liability and Property Damage: With respect to all operations performed 
under this Agreement, the Party shall carry general liability insurance having all 
major divisions of coverage including, but not limited to: 

 
Premises - Operations 
Products and Completed Operations 
Personal Injury Liability 
Contractual Liability 
 
The policy shall be on an occurrence form and limits shall not be less than: 

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
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$2,000,000 General Aggregate 
$1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury 
$50,000 Fire/Legal/Liability 

 
Automotive Liability: The Party shall carry automotive liability insurance covering all 
motor vehicles, including hired and non-owned coverage, used in connection with the 
Agreement. Limits of coverage shall not be less than $500,000 combined single limit. 
If performance of this Agreement involves construction, or the transport of persons or 
hazardous materials, limits of coverage shall not be less than $1,000,000 combined 
single limit. 
 
Additional Insured. The General Liability and Property Damage coverages required for 
performance of this Agreement shall include the CVRPC and the State of Vermont and 
their agencies, departments, officers and employees as Additional Insureds. If 
performance of this Agreement involves construction, or the transport of persons or 
hazardous materials, then the required Automotive Liability coverage shall include the 
CVRPC and the State of Vermont and their agencies, departments, officers and 
employees as Additional Insureds. Coverage shall be primary and non-contributory 
with any other insurance and self-insurance. 

 
Notice of Cancellation or Change. There shall be no cancellation, change, potential 
exhaustion of aggregate limits or non-renewal of insurance coverage(s) without thirty 
(30) days written prior written notice to the CVRPC. 

 
11. Reliance by the CVRPC on Representations: All payments by the CVRPC under 

this Agreement will be made in reliance upon the accuracy of all representations 
made by the Party in accordance with the Agreement, including but not limited to 
bills, invoices, progress reports and other proofs of work. 

 
12. False Claims Act: CVRPC is a political subdivision of the State of Vermont. The 

Party acknowledges that it is subject to the Vermont False Claims Act as set forth in 
32 V.S.A. § 630 et seq. If the Party violates the Vermont False Claims Act it shall be 
liable to the CVRPC and State for civil penalties, treble damages and the costs of the 
investigation and prosecution of such violation, including attorney’s fees, except as 
the same may be reduced by a court of competent jurisdiction. The Party’s liability to 
the CVRPC and State under the False Claims Act shall not be limited notwithstanding 
any agreement of the CVRPC or State to otherwise limit Party’s liability. 

13. Whistleblower Protections: The Party shall not discriminate or retaliate against 
one of its employees or agents for disclosing information concerning a violation of 
law, fraud, waste, abuse of authority or acts threatening health or safety, including 
but not limited to allegations concerning the False Claims Act. Further, the Party shall 
not require such employees or agents to forego monetary awards as a result of such 
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disclosures, nor should they be required to report misconduct to the Party or its 
agents prior to reporting to any governmental entity and/or the public. 

 
14. Location of State Data: No State data received, obtained, or generated by the 

Party in connection with performance under this Agreement shall be processed, 
transmitted, stored, or transferred by any means outside continental United States, 
except with the express written permission of the State. 

 
15. Records Available for Audit: The Party shall maintain all records pertaining to 

performance under this agreement. “Records” means any written or recorded 
information, regardless of physical form or characteristics, which is produced or 
acquired by the Party in the performance of this agreement. Records produced or 
acquired in a machine readable electronic format shall be maintained in that format. 
The records described shall be made available at reasonable times during the period 
of the Agreement and for three years thereafter or for any period required by law for 
inspection by any authorized representatives of the CVRPC, State or Federal 
Government. If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the 
three-year period, the records shall be retained until all litigation, claims or audit 
findings involving the records have been resolved. 

 
16. Fair Employment Practices and Americans with Disabilities Act: Party 

agrees to comply with the requirement of 21 V.S.A. Chapter 5, Subchapter 6, relating 
to fair employment practices, to the full extent applicable. Party shall also ensure, to 
the full extent required by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, 
that qualified individuals with disabilities receive equitable access to the services, 
programs, and activities provided by the Party under this Agreement. 

 
17. Set Off: The State may set off any sums which the Party owes the State against 

any sums due the Party under this Agreement; provided, however, that any set off of 
amounts due the State of Vermont as taxes shall be in accordance with the 
procedures more specifically provided hereinafter. 

 
18. Taxes Due to the State:  
 

A. Party understands and acknowledges responsibility, if applicable, for 
compliance with State tax laws, including income tax withholding for 
employees performing services within the State, payment of use tax on 
property used within the State, corporate and/or personal income tax on 
income earned within the State.  
 

B. Party certifies under the pains and penalties of perjury that, as of the date 
the Agreement is signed, the Party is in good standing with respect to, or in 
full compliance with, a plan to pay any and all taxes due the State of 
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Vermont.  
 

C. Party understands that final payment under this Agreement may be withheld 
if the Commissioner of Taxes determines that the Party is not in good 
standing with respect to or in full compliance with a plan to pay any and all 
taxes due to the State of Vermont.  
 

D. Party also understands the State may set off taxes (and related penalties, 
interest and fees) due to the State of Vermont, but only if the Party has 
failed to make an appeal within the time allowed by law, or an appeal has 
been taken and finally determined and the Party has no further legal 
recourse to contest the amounts due. 

 
19. Taxation of Purchases: All CVRPC and State purchases must be invoiced tax 

free. An exemption certificate will be furnished upon request with respect to 
otherwise taxable items. 

 
20. Child Support: (Only applicable if the Party is a natural person, not a corporation 

or partnership.) Party states that, as of the date the Agreement is signed, the Party:  
 

A. is not under any obligation to pay child support; or  
B. is under such an obligation and is in good standing with respect to that 

obligation; or  
C. has agreed to a payment plan with the Vermont Office of Child Support 

Services and is in full compliance with that plan.  
 

Party makes this statement with regard to support owed to any and all children 
residing in Vermont. In addition, if the Party is a resident of Vermont, Party makes 
this statement with regard to support owed to any and all children residing in any 
other state or territory of the United States. 

 
21. Sub-Agreements: Party shall not assign, subcontract or subgrant the 

performance of this Agreement or any portion thereof to any other Party without the 
prior written approval of the CVRPC and the State. Party shall be responsible and 
liable to the CVRPC and State for all acts or omissions of subcontractors and any 
other person performing work under this Agreement pursuant to an agreement with 
Party or any subcontractor.  

 
In the case this Agreement is a contract with a total cost in excess of $250,000, the 
Party shall provide to the CVRPC a list of all proposed subcontractors and 
subcontractors’ subcontractors, together with the identity of those subcontractors’ 
workers compensation insurance providers, and additional required or requested 
information, as applicable, in accordance with Section 32 of The Vermont Recovery 
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and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Act No. 54). 
 
Party shall include the following provisions of this Attachment C in all subcontracts for 
work performed solely for the CVRPC and subcontracts for work performed in the 
State of Vermont:  

 
Section 12, False Claims Act;  
Section 13, Whistleblower Protections;  
Section 14, Location of State Data 
Section 16, Fair Employment Practices and Americans with Disabilities Act; 
Section 18, Taxes Due the State;  
Section 20, Child Support;  
Section 22, No Gifts or Gratuities; 
Section 24, Certification Regarding Debarment;  
Section 34, CVRPC and State Facilities; and 
Section 37, State Funded Grants 

 
22. No Gifts or Gratuities: Party shall not give title or possession of anything of 

substantial value (including property, currency, travel and/or education programs) to 
any officer or employee of the CVRPC or the State during the term of this Agreement. 

 
23. Copies: Party shall use reasonable best efforts to ensure that all written reports 

prepared under this Agreement are printed using both sides of the paper. 
  
24. Certification Regarding Debarment: Party certifies under pains and penalties of 

perjury that, as of the date that this Agreement is signed, neither Party nor Party’s 
principals (officers, directors, owners, or partners) are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or excluded from 
participation in federal programs, or programs supported in whole or in part by 
Federal funds. 

 
Party further certifies under pains and penalties of perjury that, as of the date that 
this Agreement is signed, Party is not presently debarred, suspended, nor named on 
the State’s debarment list at: http://bgs.vermont.gov/purchasing/debarment. 

 
25. Conflict of Interest: Party shall fully disclose, in writing, any conflicts of interest 

or potential conflicts of interest. 
   
26. Confidentiality: Party acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement and any and 

all information obtained by the CVRPC or the State from the Party in connection with 
this Agreement are subject to the State of Vermont Access to Public Records Act, 1 
V.S.A. § 315 et seq. 
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27. Force Majeure: Neither the CVRPC, State of Vermont or the Party shall be liable 
to the other for any failure or delay of performance of any obligations under this 
Agreement to the extent such failure or delay shall have been wholly or principally 
caused by acts or events beyond its reasonable control rendering performance illegal 
or impossible (excluding strikes or lock-outs) (“Force Majeure”). Where Force Majeure 
is asserted, the nonperforming party must prove that it made all reasonable efforts to 
remove, eliminate or minimize such cause of delay or damages, diligently pursued 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement, substantially fulfilled all non-
excused obligations, and timely notified the other party of the likelihood or actual 
occurrence of an event described in this paragraph. 

 
28. Marketing: Party shall not refer to the CVRPC or State in any publicity materials, 

information pamphlets, press releases, research reports, advertising, sales 
promotions, trade shows, or marketing materials or similar communications to third 
parties except with the prior written consent of the CVRPC and State. 

 
29. Termination: In addition to any right of the CVRPC to terminate for convenience, 

the CVRPC may terminate this Agreement as follows:  
 

A. Non-Appropriation: If this Agreement extends into more than one fiscal 
year of the CVRPC or State (July 1 to June 30), and if appropriations or 
funding are insufficient to support this Agreement, the CVRPC may cancel at 
the end of the fiscal year, or otherwise upon the expiration of existing 
appropriation authority. In the case that this Agreement is funded in whole or 
in part by state or federal funds, and in the event those funds become 
unavailable or reduced, the CVRPC may suspend or cancel this Agreement 
immediately, and the CVRPC shall have no obligation to pay Party from 
CVRPC revenues. 

 
B. Termination for Cause: Either party may terminate this Agreement if a 

party materially breaches its obligations under this Agreement, and such 
breach is not cured within thirty (30) days after delivery of the non-breaching 
party’s notice or such longer time as the non-breaching party may specify in 
the notice. 

 
C. Termination Assistance: Upon nearing the end of the final term or 

termination of this Agreement, without respect to cause, the Party shall take 
all reasonable and prudent measures to facilitate any transition required by 
the CVRPC. All CVRPC or State property, tangible and intangible, shall be 
returned to the CVRPC or State as applicable upon demand at no additional 
cost to the CVRPC or State in a format acceptable to the CVRPC or State. 

 
D. Cancellation: Normal cancellation procedures notwithstanding, CVRPC 
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reserves the right to order immediate suspension of Party operations and 
termination of this Agreement in the event of Party negligence or Party 
practices in apparent violation of State or Federal law or regulations. 

 
30. Continuity of Performance: In the event of a dispute between the Party and the 

CVRPC, each party will continue to perform its obligations under this Agreement 
during the resolution of the dispute until this Agreement is terminated in accordance 
with its terms. 

 
31. No Implied Waiver of Remedies: A party’s delay or failure to exercise any right, 

power or remedy under this Agreement shall not impair any such right, power or 
remedy, or be construed as a waiver of any such right, power or remedy. All waivers 
must be in writing. 

 
32. CVRPC and State Facilities: If the CVRPC or State makes space available to the 

Party in any CVRPC or State facility during the term of this Agreement for purposes of 
the Party’s performance under this Agreement, the Party shall only use the space in 
accordance with all policies and procedures governing access to and use of CVRPC or 
State facilities which shall be made available upon request. CVRPC or State facilities 
will be made available to Party on an “AS IS, WHERE IS” basis, with no warranties 
whatsoever. 

 
33. Ownership of Equipment: Any equipment purchased by or furnished to the 

Party by CVRPC under this Agreement is provided on a loan basis only and remains 
the property of, and must be returned to, CVRPC. 

 
34. Professional Engineering Services: Any work on this Agreement which is 

“Professional Engineering Services” as defined in 26 V.S.A. §1161 must be performed 
by a Licensed or Registered Professional Engineer as required in 26 V.S.A. §1162. 

 
 35. State-Funded Grants. If box is checked, this Agreement is funded in whole or in 
part by State grant funds. As such, the following additional provisions apply. 
 

A. Certification Regarding Use of State Funds: If Party is an employer and 
this Agreement is a State-funded grant in excess of $1,001, Party certifies 
that none of these State funds will be used to interfere with or restrain the 
exercise of Party’s employee’s rights with respect to unionization. 
 

B. Good Standing Certification (Act 154 of 2016): If this Agreement is a 
State-funded grant, Party hereby represents: (i) that it has signed and 
provided to the State the form prescribed by the Secretary of Administration 
for purposes of certifying that it is in good standing (as provided in Section 
13(a)(2) of Act 154) with the Agency of Natural Resources and the Agency of 
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Agriculture, Food and Markets, or otherwise explaining the circumstances 
surrounding the inability to so certify, and (ii) that it will comply with the 
requirements stated therein. 

 
 

(End of Standard Provisions) 
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ATTACHMENT E 
Other Provisions 

 
This is an Architect/Engineer Professional Service Agreement and Attachment C, 
Paragraphs 8 and 9 are deleted in their entirety and replaced with the following: 
 
Independence, Liability, Indemnity:  
 

A. The Party will act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees of 
the CVRPC or State.  

 
B. This Agreement requires the Party to provide professional services in the design 

and/or engineering of all or a part of the Project to which this Agreement relates. 
This is not an Agreement for construction services. However, construction 
administration, observation, or certification services may be required on the part 
of the Party if this Agreement so provides. Before commencing work on this 
Agreement and throughout the term of this Agreement, the Party shall procure 
and maintain professional liability insurance for all services performed under this 
Agreement, with minimum coverage as required by the CVRPC but not less than 
$1,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 policy aggregate.  

 
C. The Party shall defend the CVRPC and State and their officers and employees 

against all claims or suits arising in whole or in part from any act or omission of 
the Party or of any agent of the Party in providing “non-professional services” 
under this Agreement. As used herein, “non-professional services” means services 
provided under this Agreement other than professional services relating to the 
design and/or engineering of all or part of the project. The CVRPC shall notify the 
Party in the event of any such claim or suit covered by this Subsection C, and the 
Party shall immediately retain counsel and otherwise provide a complete defense 
against the entire claim or suit arising out of “non-professional services” provided 
under this Agreement.  

 
D. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in Subsection C above, the 

Party shall not be obligated to defend the CVRPC, State and their officers and 
employees against claims or suits arising from the Party’s provision of engineering 
design services or architectural design services. However, the Party’s obligation to 
defend the CVRPC, State, and their officers and employees against all claims or 
suits arising out of “non-professional services” provided under this Agreement as 
provided in Subsection C above and the Party’s other obligations under 
Attachment C shall remain in effect.  

 
E. The Party agrees to indemnify and hold the CVRPC, the State of Vermont, and 

their respective officers and employees harmless from and against monetary 
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damages to third parties, together with reasonable costs, expenses and attorney’s 
fees incurred and paid by the CVRPC and/or State in defending claims by third 
parties (collectively “Damages”) but only in the event and to the extent such 
Damages are incurred and paid by the CVRPC and/or State as the proximate cause 
of negligent acts, errors or omissions (“Professional Negligence”) by the Party, its 
employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors, in providing the professional 
services required under this Agreement. 
 

F. As used herein, “Professional Negligence” or “negligent acts, errors or omissions” 
means a failure by the Party to exercise that degree of skill and care ordinarily 
possessed by a reasonably prudent design professional practicing in the same or 
similar locality providing such services under like or similar conditions and 
circumstances. 
 

G. The Party shall indemnify the CVRPC, the State of Vermont, and their officers and 
employees in the event that the CVRPC, State, or its officers or employees become 
legally obligated to pay any damages or losses arising from any act or omission of 
the Party arising from the provision of “non-professional services” (as defined 
herein) under this Agreement.  

 
H. The Party shall not be obligated to indemnify the CVRPC or State for any Damages 

incurred by the CVRPC or State attributable to the CVRPC’s or State’s own 
negligent acts, errors or omissions or the negligent acts, errors or omissions of its 
officers, agents or employees, or the acts, errors, omissions or breach of 
Agreement by persons or entities other than the Party, its employees, agents, 
consultants and subcontractors.  
 

I. After a final judgment or settlement, the Party may request recoupment of specific 
defense costs and may file suit in Washington Superior Court requesting 
recoupment. The Party shall be entitled to recoup costs only upon a showing that 
such costs were entirely unrelated to the defense of any claim arising from an act 
or omission of the Party. 
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 Act. 172 Municipal Energy Resilience Grant 
Program Agreement

 
The 2022 Acts and Resolves No.172 (Act.172) as passed by the General Assembly of the State of 
Vermont and signed into law by Governor Phil Scott on June 2, 2022 establishes the Municipal 
Energy Resilience Grant Program to “(A) make recommendations to municipalities on the use of more 
efficient renewable or electric heating systems; and (B) make necessary improvements to reduce 
emissions by reducing fossil fuel usage and increasing efficiency in municipally owned buildings.” 

 
 
Purpose  
In accordance with Act.172 Sec.3(2), Grant Program design: 

“The Department of Buildings and General Services, in consultation with Efficiency Vermont; 
the Vermont League of Cities and Towns; regional planning commissions; and experts in the 
field of thermal enclosure, energy efficiency, and renewable building space systems, shall 
design the Program.” 

 
The purpose of this agreement is to set forth the financial commitments, respective responsibilities, 
and procedures necessary between the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission (RPC) and 
Vermont Department of Buildings and General Services (BGS) to support the development and 
administration of the Municipal Energy Resilience Grant Program. 
In accordance with Act 172 (Attachment B), this agreement is entered into by and between the RPC 
and BGS, “to assist with grant and assessment applications and provide programming and technical 
assistance to covered municipalities.”  Covered municipalities are defined as “a city, town, fire district 
or incorporate village, and all other governmental incorporated units except for school districts.”  The 
Program is authorized to expend grants to covered municipalities through December 31, 2026. This 
grant agreement is in place from the time of execution through June 30, 2028.  

Background 
As stated in Act.172 Sec.(1) Findings: Municipal Energy Resilience, the General Assembly finds that: 

“(1) Vermont’s municipalities own and operate more than 2,000 buildings and facilities, which 
are used to provide services to its citizens, including libraries; storing town vehicles; providing 
space for civic engagement; and connecting citizens to healthcare, education, and commercial 
interests.” 
(2) “Vermont’s Global Warming Solutions Act sets aggressive targets for greenhouse gas 
emissions reductions, and the heating of buildings provide significant opportunities for meeting 
these targets.” 
(3) “The volatile cost of fossil fuel heating is often one of the largest line items in a municipal 
budget, which impacts the residential and commercial taxpayers in that municipality”. 
(4) “A modest expansion to the State Energy Management Program, established in 29 V.S.A. § 
168, made in 2019 can assist municipalities with responding to the greenhouse gas emissions 
targets set forth in the Global Warming Solutions Act.”  
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(5) “Connecting technical resources at the local, regional, and State level and expanding the 
State’s energy management program to include municipal buildings will promote increased 
resilience and sustained connection to critical services for all Vermonters.” 
 

Preamble 
BGS is dedicated to providing essential resources and services to support government partners, 
Vermonters, and visitors.  The Energy Office at BGS oversees the State Energy Management 
Program (SEMP) and is responsible for the administration and implementation of Act 172, the 
“Municipal Energy Resilience Program.” The goal of the SEMP is to accelerate the adoption and 
implementation of energy management measures, implementation of energy efficiency and 
conservation measures, and the use of renewable resources in State buildings and facilities.  The 
SEMP is managed by BGS in accordance with 2015 Acts and Resolves No. 58, Sec. E.112 to help 
achieve State energy goals. The intent of Act 172 is to build on the successes of the SEMP to assist 
the RPCs and municipalities in Vermont reduce energy burden through the rapid adoption, 
implementation, and acceleration of energy efficiency and resilience projects resulting in increased 
efficiency, resilience, lower greenhouse gas emissions, and a reduction in operational costs while 
increasing building comfort.  BGS, in collaboration and coordination with RPCs, and other partner 
organizations, will extend the SEMP model to covered municipalities. 
The intent of the Municipal Energy Resilience Grant Program is to create a mechanism to help 
advance the goals established in the Global Warming Solutions Act (GWSA) and Climate Action Plan 
through energy resilience education and adoption and use of energy conservation measures, 
renewable energy resources, transportation electrification infrastructure, and fuel switching. 
Vermont’s regional planning commissions provide an essential link between local, state, and federal 
government. Because they have close relationships with the municipalities of their respective regions 
and experience with municipal project development and management, the regional planning 
commissions are well-positioned to execute their roles as defined by Act 172. 

Scope of Work 
This scope of work below defines the roles and responsibilities of BGS and the RPCs for the 
administration and implementation of Act 172. 
General Program Timeline:  
▪ April 15, 2023: First Quarterly Report Due 

▪ January 15, 2024:  All energy resilience assessments must be completed.   

▪ December 31, 2024:  All grant awards must be obligated. 

▪ December 31, 2026: All grant awards must be expended.    

▪ June 30, 2028: Final reporting submitted 

RPC agrees to the following: 
1. Education and Outreach 

a. The RPC is responsible for developing an outreach and education plan pertaining to Act 
172 and municipal energy resilience including specific tactics to reach and support each 
covered municipality.  The outreach and education plan shall target municipalities with the 
highest energy burden community needs and lowest resources as defined in Efficiency 
Vermont’s 2019 Energy Burden Report.  It is an expectation that the RPCs will work 
together, in collaboration with BGS, to leverage limited resources, knowledge, and 
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expertise and ensure consistency in the information and resources shared within the 
various regions.   

 
b. The RPC will provide BGS with a copy of the outreach and education plan which will be 

primarily targeted to municipal staff, committees, and legislative bodies.   

c. The RPC will communicate regularly with BGS regarding education and outreach activities 
including workshops. 

 
d. RPC will coordinate with one another and BGS regularly regarding the development of 

education and outreach materials to ensure messaging is consistent including online 
resources developed by BGS in consultation with the program design team.  

 
2. Municipal Planning and Technical Assistance 

a. Planning. Per the requirements of Act. 172 Sec.3(2)B, the RPC will support BGS efforts to 
establish and maintain an equitable system for distributing implementation grants statewide 
on the basis of need according to a system of priorities including the following ranked in 
priority order: 

i. A municipality with the highest energy burden community needs and lowest 
resources, as defined in Efficiency Vermont’s 2019 Energy Burden Report; 

ii. A municipality that may not have administrative support to apply for grant; 
iii. Geographic location; 
iv. Community size; and 
v. Whether another division of the municipality has already received a grant 

 
b. Grant and Assessment Application Technical Assistance.  The RPC, using their established 

relationships with covered municipalities, shall assist with grant and assessment applications.  
The RPC will support covered municipalities in gathering all relevant and available 
documents for grant applications, energy assessments, and efficiency projects. As part of 
this effort, the RPC will prioritize assistance to municipalities defined as in Act. 172 Sec.3(2)B 
and referenced above in section 2(a). 

 
c. Grant and Assessment Application Consultation. The RPC will help municipalities prepare 

Municipal Energy Resilience Program grant applications for the following: 1. energy 
resilience assessments, 2. up to $4,000 grants to each covered municipality to facilitate 
community meetings and communication about municipal energy resilience, and 3. no more 
than $500,000 to each covered municipality for approved projects for weatherization, thermal 
efficiency, to supplement or replace fossil fuel heating systems with more efficient renewable 
or electric heating systems, and any other expenditure for the project to be eligible for 
funding.  The RPC will also support the covered municipality in gathering all relevant 
documents for grant applications, energy assessments, and efficiency projects.  In 
accordance with Act 172, municipalities with the highest energy burden community needs 
and lowest resources will be prioritized for funding and technical assistance.  Municipalities 
may apply directly to BGS or with the assistance of the RPC, though it is preferred that the 
RPC collect the application(s) and deliver them to BGS. 
 

d. Energy Resilience Programming and Technical Assistance. Pursuant to Act.172, the RPC 
will provide technical assistance to covered municipalities.  This may include guidance on 
issues or goals, resources, and training.  The RPC will support communication and 
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coordination with covered municipalities, defined in statute as “city, town, fire district or 
incorporated village, and all other governmental incorporated units except for school districts” 
within their respective regions.  This includes, but is not limited to, education and outreach, 
identifying candidate buildings, and providing consultation regarding those with special 
circumstances which may be program-eligible, supporting the coordination of work in the 
most efficient and effective manner (i.e. help coordinate energy resilience assessments 
strategically within and between regions in close proximity to one another, coordinate 
building resilience projects with multiple scopes of work- including non-energy resilience work 
which is funded by external sources, etc.), and providing consulting services and guidance 
during the project delivery process (i.e. planning, design, and construction).  All building 
assessments shall be completed by the contractor(s) under contract with the BGS Office of 
Purchasing and Contracting.  The RPC will provide these services in consultation and 
coordination with BGS.  Municipalities may work with BGS directly or with the assistance of 
the RPC, though the latter is preferred to streamline the process and maximize services.   
 

3. Reporting. BGS has consulted with the Department of Finance and Management 
regarding acceptable minimum reporting requirements. The following is a 
comprehensive list of those minimum requirements; however, BGS may request 
additional reporting information, including financial, environmental, and legislative, as 
needed to complete state and federal reporting requirements. 

 
a. RPC will use the funds provided by BGS in conformance with all requirements detailed in 

Act172 and all state and/or federal reporting. 
 

b. RPC Quarterly Report. RPC will submit a quarterly report to BGS detailing activities and 
expenditures toward the program within 30 days of the close of the quarter.  

Examples of reporting activities may include: 
i. Summary of outreach to municipalities informing them about the targets contained 

within the Global Warming Solutions Act and provisions within the Climate Action 
Plan and implications for municipal buildings and facilities. 

ii. Describe cooperation with BGS, partner organizations, and others in tracking data 
and reporting on progress toward achieving energy and greenhouse gas emission 
targets. 

iii. Summarize efforts to ensure work has prioritized aforementioned prioritized 
communities. 

iv. Number and location of covered municipalities assisted. 
v. Number, location, and general condition of candidate building identified. 
vi. Summary of grant requests from covered municipalities. 
vii. Summary of types of projects covered municipalities are wanting to pursue (i.e., 

weatherization, fuel switching, renewable energy generation, vehicle charging 
infrastructure, etc.). 

viii. Number of assessments completed. 
ix. Summary of awarded grants and associated activities including the date of 

substantial completion of projects.   
x. Summary of each project funded, expected project savings, successes and 

challenges. 
 

c. VT Association of Planning and Development Agencies (VAPDA) Annual Report. As required 
in Ac 172 Sec. 6(f) beginning on January 15, 2024, and annually thereafter, RPC will work 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 84E8FA31-EAE6-492F-B158-D006AE2F8D48

01/03/23 57



 
BGS-CVRPC Grant Agreement Page 5 of 7 

with program stakeholders and VAPDA to submit an annual progress report on program 
activities to BGS including: 

i.  A summary of each project receiving funding and expected savings. 
ii. Work on statutory duties as determined by regional priorities.   
iii. Report results in individual contract reporting and individual annual reports (use 

common reporting elements for consistency, e.g.: regional planning implementation 
projects/activities, municipal technical assistance, resilience, preparedness, 
transportation, energy, etc.).  

d. Annual audit: RPC will submit an annual audit within 6 months following the close of the RPC 
fiscal year. 
 

 
BGS Agrees to the following: 

1. Education and Outreach 
a. BGS will work with RPC to attend workshops and in-person events as requested. 

 
b. BGS will communicate regularly with RPC regarding education and outreach activities 

including workshops. 
 

c. BGS will coordinate with RPC regularly regarding the development of education and 
outreach materials to ensure messaging is consistent including online resources.  

 
2. Municipal Planning and Technical Assistance 

a. BGS will monitor the program implementation efforts including providing standard 
templates, reviewing reports, budget tracking, and documentation collection.  
 

b. BGS will keep RPC informed in advance of any reporting requirements or changes to 
existing reporting formats.  

 
3. Implementation and Reporting 

 
a. BGS will deliver funds allocated in Ac172 to the RPC quarterly according to the required 

breakdown (see Funding Provisions). 
 

b. BGS will monitor the program implementation efforts including reviewing reports, budget 
tracking, and documentation collection prepared by the RPC.  

 

c. Per the requirements of Act. 172 Sec.3(2)B, BGS will work with RPC to establish an 
equitable system for distributing grants statewide on the basis of need according to a 
system of priorities including the following ranked in priority order: 

i. A municipality with the highest energy burden community needs and lowest 
resources, as defined in Efficiency Vermont’s 2019 Energy Burden Report; 

ii. A municipality that may not have administrative support to apply for grant; 
iii. Geographic location; 
iv. Community size; and 
v. Whether another division of the municipality has already received a grant 
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d. BGS will keep RPC informed in advance of any reporting requirements or changes to 
existing reporting formats.  

 
4. Access to Internal BGS Resources 

 
a. BGS will provide the RPC and covered municipalities all internal departmental 

resources relevant to the execution of the Program, including the above education and 
technical assistance capacities as well as BGS staffing resources. 

Funding Provisions 
In accordance with Act172 Sec.4(1), “The amount of $2,400,000.00 shall be appropriated to the 
Department of Buildings and General Services for regional planning commissions to assist with grant 
and assessment applications and provide programming and technical assistance to covered 
municipalities.  The funding to regional planning commissions shall be distributed as follows:  
 

(A)  Fifty-five percent (55%) of the funds shall be divided equally among the regional 
planning commissions. 

(B)  Forty-five percent (45%) of the funds shall be allocated according to the number of 
Vermont member municipalities in each regional planning commission as of July 1, 
2022.” 

 
It is agreed that the definition of “member municipality” as used above will adhere to that used by the 
Agency of Commerce and Community Development (ACCD) Municipal Planning Data Center in their 
own previous grant agreements with RPCs. BGS commits to disburse the following total funds to the 
RPC quarterly over the term of the granting period ending 12/31/2026, comprising seventeen total 
payments beginning in the fourth quarter of 2022. The first quarterly payment will be an advance of 
the RPC’s 55% equal share authorized in Act 172 Sec. 4(1)(A), which is $120,000. The following 
payments will consist of the remaining grant funds (the remaining 45% of the RPC’s award), 
distributed based on the amount invoiced for actual costs incurred during the quarter against the 
original disbursement of $120,000 over sixteen quarters or until funds run out. BGS commits to 
disbursement of the first payment within thirty days of the execution of this agreement 
55% Equal Share 45% Member Allocation (CVRPC) 

$120,000 $96,716.42 

Total Award $216,716.42 
 
RPC commits to submitting a quarterly report detailing funds expended and a final comprehensive 
report by June 30th 2028 detailing all required documentation of funding expended. In addition, the 
RPC will submit a grant payment request (invoice) on the 15th of the last month of the following 
quarter.  RPC commits to coordinating with BGS on all reporting needs; financial, environmental and 
legislative; providing the documentation necessary to complete state and federal reporting 
requirements. No additional expenses may be sought by the RPC from BGS beyond the funding 
provided under this grant agreement.  

Term and Effective Date 
This agreement shall become effective from the date of signing by both parties to this agreement and 
remain in effect until June 30, 2028, unless superseded by a future agreement between the RPC and 
BGS which may better reflect the timeline of monitoring and reporting required by the State of 
Vermont. 
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Amendments & Modification 
No changes or modifications in duties, financial commitments, or participation, and no amendments 
or extensions to the agreement shall be effective unless resulting from changes to the internal BGS 
grant management plan regarding the Program and documented in writing and signed by the duly 
authorized representatives of BGS and RPC.  

Cooperation and Coordination 
RPC and BGS agree to cooperate and coordinate with each other on the execution of the Municipal 
Energy Resilience Grant Program to the extent practical and required to leverage the greatest impact 
for the State of Vermont with these funds.  

Communications 
Either party to this agreement may communicate about its role in the Municipal Energy Resilience 
Grant Program with its stakeholders and the media provided any public communications (press 
release) with the media are made known to the other party in advance of release. Joint press 
releases may be issued after receiving the appropriate approvals in accordance with each party’s 
existing policies and procedures. 

Termination 
Either party may terminate this agreement with cause with thirty days written notice after a period of 
one year and any funds not yet expended must be returned.  

Christian Meyer       
Executive Director

Central Vermont Regional Planning 
Commission       

Signature            

________________________________  

Date 

______________ 

Jennifer M. V. Fitch, P.E.       
Commissioner  

Department of Buildings and General 
Services   

 Signature           

________________________________  

Date 

______________ 
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Attachment A 

Attachment A: Municipal Planning Data Center- Member 
Municipality Data for CVRPC 

RPC Municipality Type 
Town Plan 
Adoption 

Town Plan 
Expiration 

Town Plan RPC 
Confirmed 

CVRPC Barre City City 9/15/2020 9/15/2028 10/10/2020 
CVRPC Barre Town Town 6/23/2020 6/23/2028 9/8/2020 
CVRPC Berlin Town 6/6/2022 8/14/2026 9/13/2022 
CVRPC Cabot Town 8/15/2017 8/15/2025 10/10/2017 
CVRPC Calais Town 12/13/2021 2/1/2024 2/8/2022 
CVRPC Duxbury Town 10/23/2020 10/13/2028 11/8/2022 
CVRPC East Montpelier Town 6/4/2018 6/4/2026 7/10/2018 
CVRPC Fayston Town 9/22/2020 9/22/2028 9/24/2020 
CVRPC Marshfield Town 8/21/2018 8/21/2026 10/9/2018 
CVRPC Middlesex Town 3/1/2022 3/1/2030 9/13/2022 
CVRPC Montpelier City 12/20/2017 12/20/2025 4/10/2018 
CVRPC Moretown Town 1/4/2016 1/4/2024 4/12/2016 
CVRPC Northfield Town 8/10/2020 8/11/2028 9/24/2020 
CVRPC Orange Town 9/7/2018 9/7/2026 9/11/2018 
CVRPC Plainfield Town 4/12/2021 4/12/2029 6/8/2021 
CVRPC Roxbury Town 1/24/2022 1/24/2030 3/8/2022 
CVRPC Waitsfield Town 12/18/2017 12/18/2025 2/13/2018 
CVRPC Warren Town 4/23/2019 4/23/2027 9/10/2019 
CVRPC Washington Town 11/12/2013 11/12/2018 2/11/2014 
CVRPC Waterbury Town 12/3/2018 12/3/2026 5/14/2019 
CVRPC Waterbury Village Village 12/3/2018 12/3/2026 5/14/2019 
CVRPC Williamstown Town 4/11/2016 4/11/2024 6/14/2016 
CVRPC Woodbury Town 4/25/2022 4/25/2030 6/14/2022 
CVRPC Worcester Town 11/1/2007 11/1/2012 1/8/2008 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 84E8FA31-EAE6-492F-B158-D006AE2F8D48

01/03/23 61



  

Attachment B 

Attachment B: Act 58 (2015) Sec. E.112 
 
Sec. E.112 ENERGY EFFICIENCY; STATE BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES 

(a) As a mechanism to implement 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 40, Sec. 47 (State energy use), 

the State of Vermont has developed a State Energy Management Program (the Program) 

within the Department of Buildings and General Services (the Department) to address, for 

State buildings and facilities, energy management measures, implementation of energy 

efficiency and conservation, and the use of renewable energy resources.  

(b) Notwithstanding any provision of Title 30 of the Vermont Statutes Annotated, Public Service 

Board order, or other provision of law to the contrary: 

(1) The Department and Efficiency Vermont (EVT) shall augment the Program for a 

preliminary period of four years commencing in fiscal year 2016 under which EVT shall 

provide the Department with support for the Program to deliver cost-effective energy 

efficiency and conservation measures to State buildings and facilities. The Department 

and EVT may agree to continue conducting this augmented Program in subsequent fiscal 

years, after considering recommendations for improvement based on evaluation of the 

preliminary period. 

(A) The Department and EVT shall develop the augmented Program’s annual targets for 

energy savings and associated cost savings to the State. Savings from measures 

provided by any energy efficiency entity appointed under 30 V.S.A. § 209(d)(2) shall 

count toward these targets. Savings supported by EVT may result from electric and 

thermal efficiency, including fuel switching, conservation, and improved building 

energy management, without regard to funding source.  
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(B) During fiscal year 2016, the measures implemented under this subdivision (1) shall 

reduce the State’s total energy usage and related costs by an amount not less than 

$150,000. 

(C) During fiscal year 2017, the measures implemented under this subdivision  (1) shall 

reduce the State’s total energy usage and related costs by a cumulative amount of not 

less than $300,000, provided that failure to attain these savings amounts in fiscal 

years 2016 and 2017 does not result from action or inaction of the Department. 

(2) In addition to the requirements of subdivision (1) of this section, the project shall include 

provision by EVT of support for personnel to implement the Program during fiscal years 

2016 to 2019. 

(A) The supported personnel shall be the building project manager position established in 

Sec. E.100(a)(2) of this act and two four-year limited service or consulting positions, 

and related supervision and overhead, as the Department and EVT consider necessary 

to meet the goals. 

(B) Under this subdivision (2), EVT shall provide up to $290,000 during fiscal year 2016. 

For the remaining three fiscal years, EVT shall provide an additional amount 

sufficient to support annual salary and benefit adjustments. These funds shall be 

received in the Facilities Operations Fund established in 29 V.S.A. § 160a, and may 

be spent using excess receipts authority. 

(3) The Public Service Board shall adjust any performance measures applicable to EVT to 

recognize the requirements of this section. 

(c) The Department and EVT shall execute a new or amended memorandum of understanding to 

implement this section, which shall include targets for future energy savings, a process for 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 84E8FA31-EAE6-492F-B158-D006AE2F8D48

01/03/23 63



  

Attachment B 

determining how savings targets are met, and details of EVT’s commitment for personnel 

over a four-year time period. 

(d) On or before October 1 of each year commencing in 2016 and ending in 2019, the 

Department and EVT shall provide a joint report on the implementation of this section. 

(1) The report shall state, for the prior fiscal year, the energy savings targets developed, the 

actions taken to achieve those targets, and the energy savings achieved by each action. 

(2) The report shall project savings and strategies to attain those savings for the next fiscal 

year and for the remaining fiscal years of the Program. 

(3) The report shall include improvements made toward systems of measurement to achieve 

the goals of 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 40. 

(4) The report may include recommendations for accelerating the implementation of energy 

efficiency and conservation measures under the Program and improving the Program’s 

tracking and documentation of savings. 

(5) The report to be submitted in 2019 shall contain an evaluation of the Program authorized 

under this section and any resulting recommendations, including recommendations 

related to Program continuation. 

(6) The report shall be submitted to the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions, 

the Senate Committee on Institutions, the House and Senate Committees on Natural 

Resources and Energy, the House and Senate Committees on Appropriations, the 

Secretary of Administration, and the Joint Fiscal Office. 
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Attachment C: 2022 Acts and Resolves No. 172 

No. 172. An act relating to municipal energy resilience initiatives. 

(H.518) 

It is hereby enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Vermont:  

Sec. 1. FINDINGS; MUNICIPAL ENERGY RESILIENCE 

The General Assembly finds that: 

(1) Vermont’s municipalities own and operate more than 2,000 buildings and facilities, which 

are used to provide services to its citizens, including libraries; storing town vehicles; 

providing space for civic engagement; and connecting citizens to healthcare, education, and 

commercial interests. 

(2) Vermont’s Global Warming Solutions Act sets aggressive targets for greenhouse gas 

emissions reductions, and the heating of buildings provide significant opportunities for 

meeting these targets. 

(3) The volatile cost of fossil fuel heating is often one of the largest line items in a municipal 

budget, which impacts the residential and commercial taxpayers in that municipality. 

(4) A modest expansion to the State Energy Management Program, established in 29 V.S.A. § 

168, made in 2019 can assist municipalities with responding to the greenhouse gas emissions 

targets set forth in the Global Warming Solutions Act. 

(5) Connecting technical resources at the local, regional, and State level and expanding the 

State’s energy management program to include municipal buildings will promote increased 

resilience and sustained connection to critical services for all Vermonters. 

Sec. 2. MUNICIPAL ENERGY RESILIENCE; DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS AND 

GENERAL SERVICES; ASSESSMENTS 
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(a) Energy resilience assessments. On or before September 1, 2022, the Department of Buildings 

and General Services shall issue a request for proposal for a comprehensive energy resilience 

assessment of covered municipal buildings and facilities. 

(b) Request for proposal. The Commissioner of Buildings and General Services shall contract 

with an independent third party to conduct the assessment described in subsection (a) of this 

section. The assessment shall be completed on or before January 15, 2024. 

(c) Application. A covered municipality shall submit an application to the Department of 

Buildings and General Services to receive an assessment of its buildings and facilities 

pursuant to the guidelines established in subsection (e) of this section. As part of the 

application process, a municipality may use the assistance of a regional planning commission 

to develop plans. 

(d) Scope. For each covered municipality, the assessment described in subsection (a) of this 

section shall include a scope of work, cost, and timeline for completion for each building or 

facility. The assessment shall also include  

(1) recommendations for improvements that reduce the operating and maintenance costs, 

enhance comfort, and reduce energy intensity in a municipal building or facility, 

including: 

(A) the improvement or replacement, or both, of heating, ventilation and air conditioning 

systems; 

(B) the use of a renewable energy source for heating systems, provided that 

recommendations for the use of a heating systems that uses fossil fuels is not eligible; 

and 

(C) improvements to the buildings or facilities thermal envelope; 
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(2) an evaluation on the reasonableness of battery storage and EV charging stations and 

recommended locations, as applicable; 

(3) an evaluation of the potential for on-site renewable energy generation options and 

recommendation on the one most feasible, as applicable; 

(4) an estimate of costs for each recommendation; 

(5) an estimate of system and equipment life cycle costs and consumption data; and 

(6) the potential to phase the scope of work and suggest a prioritized order of completion 

separate from the energy assessment scope. 

(e) Administration. The Department of Buildings and General Services shall establish guidelines 

for a covered municipality to receive an assessment and shall require at a minimum that: 

(1) the covered municipality has access to high-speed Internet as defined in the State’s 

Telecommunication Plan set forth in 30 V.S.A. § 202c or a plan is in place by 2024 to 

ensure access to high-speed Internet; and 

(2) any building that is assessed is compliant with the American Disabilities Act at the time 

the project is completed. 

(f) Definition. As used in this section, “covered municipality” means a city, town, fire district or 

incorporated village, and all other governmental 

incorporated units except for school districts. 

Sec. 3. MUNICIPAL ENERGY RESILIENCE GRANT PROGRAM 

(a) Program established. 

(1) In fiscal year 2023, there is established the Municipal Energy Resilience Grant Program 

to award grants to: 
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(A) make recommendations to municipalities on the use of more efficient renewable or 

electric heating systems; and 

(B) make necessary improvements to reduce emissions by reducing fossil fuel usage and 

increasing efficiency in municipally owned buildings. 

(2) For the awards granted pursuant to this subsection, the primary design of replacement 

systems shall prioritize renewable or electric heating systems as the preferred heating 

source. If, after review, a non-fossil fuel heating system is not technically feasible as a 

primary heating source, the recommendation may include upgrades for other heating 

systems, provided they reduce fossil fuel consumption and meet the goals of this act. 

(b) Definition. As used in this section, “covered municipality” means a city, town, fire district or 

incorporated village, and all other governmental incorporated units except for school 

districts. 

(c) Administration; implementation. 

(1) Grant awards. The Department of Buildings and General Services, in coordination with 

Efficiency Vermont, through the State Energy Management Program, shall administer the 

Program, which shall award grants for the following: 

(A) not more than $500,000.00 to each covered municipality for approved projects for 

weatherization, thermal efficiency, to supplement or replace fossil fuel heating 

systems with more efficient renewable or electric heating systems, and any other 

expenditures necessary for the project to be eligible for funding under federal law and 

guidelines; and 

(B) not more than $4,000.00 to each covered municipality to facilitate community 

meetings and communication about municipal energy resilience. 
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(2) Grant Program design. The Department of Buildings and General Services, in 

consultation with Efficiency Vermont; the Vermont League of Cities and Towns; 

regional planning commissions; and experts in the field of thermal enclosure, energy 

efficiency, and renewable building space systems, shall design the Program. The Program 

shall include a streamlined and minimal application process for a municipality to apply 

directly to the Department of Buildings and General Services or with the assistance of a 

regional planning commission. The Program design shall establish: 

(A) an outreach and education plan by regional planning commissions, including specific 

tactics to reach and support each covered municipality; 

(B) an equitable system for distributing grants statewide on the basis of need according to 

a system of priorities, including the following ranked in priority order: 

(i) a municipality with the highest energy burden community needs and 

lowest resources, as defined in Efficiency Vermont’s 2019 Energy Burden 

Report; 

(ii) a municipality that may not have administrative support to apply for 

grants; 

(iii)geographic location; 

(iv) community size; and 

(v) whether another division of the municipality has already received a grant; 

(C) guidelines for renewable and energy efficiency buildings systems resilience, 

durability, health, and efficiency measures and costs that will be eligible for grant 

funding; and 
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(D) eligibility criteria for covered municipalities, including written commitment by the 

municipality to conduct community workshops and a self- assessment. 

(d) Coordination. The Department of Buildings and General Services shall coordinate with any 

other State entities and agencies working with covered municipalities to provide grants for 

the Program. 

(e) Funding. The Program shall be funded by the American Rescue Plan 

Act State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund. 

(f) Assessment. A covered municipality is only eligible for a grant under this section if an 

assessment of its buildings and facilities has been conducted pursuant to Sec. 2 of this act. 

Sec. 4. MUNICIPAL ENERGY RESILIENCE GRANT PROGRAM; APPROPRIATION 

In fiscal year 2023, the amount of $45,000,000.00 shall be appropriated from the American 

Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) from the State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund to the Municipal 

Energy Resilience Grant Program for use as follows: 

(1) The amount of $2,400,000.00 shall be appropriated to the Department of Buildings and 

General Services for regional planning commissions to assist with grant and assessment 

applications and provide programming and technical assistance to covered municipalities. 

The funding to regional planning commissions shall be distributed as follows: 

(A) Fifty-five percent of the funds shall be divided equally among the regional planning 

commissions. 

(B) Forty-five percent of the funds shall be allocated according to the number of Vermont 

member municipalities in each regional planning commission as of July 1, 2022. 

(2) The amount of $42,600,000.00 shall be appropriated to the Department of Buildings and 

General Services to be used as follows: 
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(A) $5,000,000.00 for hiring a contractor to conduct assessments pursuant to Sec. 2 of 

this act; 

(B) $1,000,000.00 for costs associated with administering the grant program; and 

(C) $36,600,000.00 for grants to covered municipalities for weatherization, for thermal 

efficiency, and to supplement or replace heating systems with more efficient 

renewable or electric heating systems. 

* * * Municipal Energy Loan Program * * * Sec. 5. 29 V.S.A. § 168a is added to read: 

§ 168a. MUNICIPAL ENERGY LOAN PROGRAM 

(a) Authority. The Department of Buildings and General Services is authorized to provide 

financing to municipalities through the Municipal Energy Loan Program for equipment 

replacement, studies, weatherization, construction of improvements affecting the use of 

energy resources, the implementation of energy efficiency and conservation measures, and 

the use of renewable resources. 

(b) Loan eligibility and criteria. The Commissioner shall establish for the Program described in 

subsection (a) of this section: 

(1) criteria to determine eligibility for funding, including repayment terms; 

(2) a priority basis for the selection process that ensures equitable allocation of funds to 

municipalities, considering at least financial need, geographic distribution, and ability to 

repay; and 

(3) loan conditions that ensure accountability by a municipality receiving funds. 

(c) Definitions. As used in this section: 

(1) “Energy efficiency improvement” has the same meaning as in section 168 of this title. 
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(2) “Covered municipality” means a city, town, fire district or incorporated village, and all 

other governmental incorporated units except for school districts. 

(3) “Renewables” has the same meaning as in 30 V.S.A. § 8002. 

(4) “Resource conservation measures” has the same meaning as in section 168 of this title. 

Sec. 6. 29 V.S.A. § 168b is added to read: 

§ 168b. MUNICIPAL ENERGY REVOLVING FUND 

(a) Creation. There is established the Municipal Energy Revolving Fund to provide financing for 

the Municipal Energy Loan Program established in section 168a of this title. 

(b) Monies in the Fund. The Fund shall consist of: 

(1) monies appropriated to the Fund and; 

(2) loan repayment by municipalities 

(c) Repayment terms. A municipality receiving funding shall repay the Fund through its regular 

operating budget according to a schedule established by the Commissioner. 

(d) Fund administration. 

(1) The Commissioner of Finance and Management may anticipate receipts to this Fund and 

issue warrants based thereon. 

(2) The Commissioner of Buildings and General Services shall maintain accurate and 

complete records of all receipts by and expenditures from the Fund. 

(3) All balances remaining at the end of a fiscal year shall be carried over to the following 

year. 

(e) Definitions. As used in this section: 

(1) “Energy efficiency improvement” has the same meaning as in section 168 of this title. 

(2) “Renewables” has the same meaning as in 30 V.S.A. § 8002. 
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(f) Annual report. Beginning on or before January 15, 2023 and annually thereafter, the 

Commissioner of Buildings and General Services shall report to the House Committees on 

Corrections and Institutions and on Energy and Technology and the Senate Committee on 

Institutions on the expenditure of funds from the Municipal Energy Revolving Fund. For 

each fiscal year, the report shall include a summary of each project receiving funding and the 

municipality’s expected savings. The provisions of 2 V.S.A. § 20(d) (expiration of required 

reports) shall not apply to the report to be made under this subsection. 

Sec. 7. MUNICIPAL ENERGY REVOLVING FUND; DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS AND 

GENERAL SERVICES; FEE RECOMMENDATION 

On or before January 15, 2023, the Commissioner of Buildings and General Services shall 

submit a recommendation to the House Committee on Ways and Means and the Senate 

Committee on Finance for a fee amount to be charged to pay for administrative costs associated 

with the Municipal Energy Revolving Fund. 

Sec. 8. MUNICIPAL ENERGY REVOLVING FUND; FY 2023 APPROPRIATION; REPORT 

(a) In FY 2023, to the extent permitted by federal law, the following amounts shall be 

transferred to the Department of Buildings and General Services from the Department of 

Public Service for the Municipal Energy Revolving Fund, as established in 29 V.S.A. § 168b: 

(1) not more than $800,000.00 from the Energy Efficiency Revolving Loan Fund 

Capitalization Grant allocated in the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, Pub. L. No. 

117-58 pursuant to the process set forth in 32 V.S.A. § 5; and 

(2) not more than $2,000,000.00 from the Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy Block 

Grant Fund in the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, Pub. L. No. 117-58 pursuant to 

the process set forth in 32 V.S.A. § 5. 
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(b) On or before January 15, 2023, the Department of Public Service shall report to the House 

Committee on Energy and Technology and the Senate Committee on Finance on the total 

grant amounts approved by the State an transferred to the Municipal Energy Revolving Fund 

pursuant to subsection (a) of this section. 

Sec. 9. 2015 Acts and Resolves No. 58, Sec. E.112, as amended by 2019 Acts and Resolves No. 

72, Sec. E.112, is further amended to read: 

Sec. E.112 ENERGY EFFICIENCY; STATE BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES 

* * * 

(b) Notwithstanding any provision of Title 30 of the Vermont Statutes Annotated, Public Service 

Board order, or other provision of law to the contrary: 

(1) The Department and Efficiency Vermont (EVT) shall augment the Program for a 

preliminary period of eight 11 years commencing in fiscal year 2016 under which EVT 

shall provide the Department with support for the Program to deliver cost-effective 

energy efficiency and conservation measures to State buildings and facilities, with the 

goal of this pilot to create a self- sustaining program at the Department, with annual 

savings from energy projects exceeding the annual cost to staff the Program. The 

Department and EVT may agree to continue conducting this augmented Program in 

subsequent fiscal years, after considering recommendations for improvement based on 

evaluation of the preliminary period. 

* * * 

(2) In addition to the requirements of subdivision (1) of this subsection, the project shall 

include provision by EVT of support for personnel to implement the Program during 

fiscal years 2016 to 2023 2027. 
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* * * 

(B) Under this subdivision (2), EVT shall provide up to $290,000 during fiscal year 2016. 

For the remaining seven 10 fiscal years, EVT shall provide an additional amount 

sufficient to support annual salary and benefit adjustments make available under 

agreement with the Department an additional amount sufficient to support annual 

salary and benefit adjustments. These funds shall be received in the Facilities 

Operations Fund established in 29 V.S.A. § 160a, and may be spent using excess 

receipts authority. Efficiency Vermont and the Department may agree to adjust the 

funding committed to this Program based on a joint evaluation that annual energy 

savings generated by this Program exceed the annual cost of the staff positions. 

(3) The Public Service Board shall adjust any performance measures applicable to EVT to 

recognize the requirements of this section. 

(c) The Department and EVT shall execute a new or amended memorandum of understanding to 

implement this section, which shall include targets for future energy savings, a process for 

determining how savings targets are met, and details of EVT’s commitment for personnel 

over an eight-year a 10-year time period. 

(d) On or before October 1 of each year commencing in 2016 and ending in 2023 2027, the 

Department and EVT shall provide a joint report on the 

implementation of this section. 

* * * 

(5) The report to be submitted in 2019 and, in 2023, and in 2027 shall contain an evaluation 

of the Program authorized under this section and any resulting recommendations, 

including recommendations related to Program continuation beyond 2023 2027. 
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* * * 

Sec. 10. FY 2023; APPROPRIATION; DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS AND GENERAL 

SERVICES; REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSIONS; POSITIONS 

(a) Department of Buildings and General Services. Two full-time, limited- service positions are 

created in the Department of Buildings and General Services in fiscal year 2023 for three 

fiscal years to administer the municipal energy resilience assessments pursuant to Sec. 2 of 

this act. The positions shall be responsible for determining project eligibility; coordinating 

with the State Energy Management Program to recruit and coordinate auditors, engineers, 

and contractors; and providing financing technical assistance for municipalities 

implementing projects. These positions shall be funded from the amount appropriated in Sec. 

4(2)(B) of this act. 

(b) Department of Buildings and General Services; Municipal Energy Resilience Grant Program. 

Two full-time, limited-service positions are created in the Department of Buildings and 

General Services in fiscal year 2023 for three fiscal years to administer the Municipal Energy 

Resilience Grant Program created in Sec. 3 of this act. The positions shall be funded from the 

amount of $1,000,000.00 for administrative costs appropriated in Sec. 4(2)(B of this act. 

* * * Effective Date * * * Sec. 11. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2022. 

Date Governor signed bill: June 2, 2022 

 

 

 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 84E8FA31-EAE6-492F-B158-D006AE2F8D48

01/03/23 76



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 84E8FA31EAE6492FB158D006AE2F8D48 Status: Sent

Subject: RPC Agreement

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 23 Signatures: 0 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Brian Sewell

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada)

Agency of Digital Services

One National Life Drive, Dewey Building

Montpelier, VT  05620

Brian.Sewell@vermont.gov

IP Address: 159.105.112.7  

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             12/13/2022 3:19:29 PM

Holder: Brian Sewell

             Brian.Sewell@vermont.gov

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: BGS - Buildings Grounds and Services Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Christian Meyer

meyer@cvregion.com

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 12/13/2022 3:23:03 PM

Viewed: 12/14/2022 9:35:26 AM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 12/14/2022 9:35:26 AM
      ID: 380c5821-a845-49aa-90d2-030d7df66282

Jennifer Fitch

Jennifer.Fitch@vermont.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp
Judy Bruneau

Judy.Bruneau@vermont.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps

01/03/23 77



Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 12/13/2022 3:23:03 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

01/03/23 78



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  

From time to time, BGS (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to you certain 

written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for providing to you 

such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign system. Please read the 

information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this information electronically 

to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please 

confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and 

signatures’ before clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

 

Getting paper copies  

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send 

to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you 

elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time 

(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to 

send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a 

$0.10 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the 

procedure described below. 

 

Withdrawing your consent  

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below. 

 

Consequences of changing your mind  

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to 

receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents 

from us. 

 

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 9/23/2021 3:40:39 PM
Parties agreed to: Christian Meyer01/03/23 79



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us. 

 

How to contact BGS:  

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: SOV.DocuSign@vermont.gov 

 

To advise BGS of your new email address  

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at SOV.DocuSign@vermont.gov 

and in the body of such request you must state: your previous email address, your new email 

address.  We do not require any other information from you to change your email address.  

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your 

account preferences.  

 

To request paper copies from BGS  

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an email to SOV.DocuSign@vermont.gov and in 

the body of such request you must state your email address, full name, mailing address, and 

telephone number. Copy charge .10 per page for paper copies, billed upon delivery. 

 

To withdraw your consent with BGS  

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 
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i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page, 

select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 

ii. send us an email to SOV.DocuSign@vermont.gov and in the body of such request you must 

state your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need any other 

information from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences of your withdrawing consent for 

online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process.. 

 

Required hardware and software  

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The 

current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-

signing-system-requirements.  

 

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically  

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have 

read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for 

your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address 

where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, 

if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described 

herein, then select the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before 

clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

By selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’, you confirm 

that: 

 You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and 

 You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send 

this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future 

reference and access; and 

 Until or unless you notify BGS as described above, you consent to receive exclusively 

through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations, acknowledgements, and 

other documents that are required to be provided or made available to you by BGS during 

the course of your relationship with BGS. 
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Effect ive 12/26/2014 
Revised: 3/23/2022 

STATE OF VERMONT GRANT AGREEMENT        Part 1-Grant Award Detail 
SECTION I - GENERAL GRANT INFORMATION 

1 Grant #: 2 Original      Amendment #    ____ 
3 Grant Title: 
4 Amount Previously Awarded: 5 Amount Awarded This Action: 6 Total Award Amount: 

7 Award Start Date: 8 Award End Date: 9 Subrecipient Award:     YES   NO
10 Supplier #: 11 Grantee Name: 
12 Grantee Address: 
13 City: 14 State:  15 Zip Code:  
16 State Granting Agency: 17 Business Unit: 
18 Performance Measures: 
YES   NO  

19 Match/In-Kind:  Description:  

20  If this action is an amendment, the following is amended:    
Amount:                 Funding Allocation:    Performance Period:    Scope of Work:     Other:   

SECTION II - SUBRECIPIENT AWARD INFORMATION 
21 Grantee Identifier [UEI] #: 22 Indirect Rate: 

 %
(Approved rate or de minimis 10%)

23 FFATA: YES   NO 
24 Grantee Fiscal Year End Month (MM format): 25 R&D: 
26 Entity Identifier [UEI] Name (if different than VISION Vendor Name in Box 11):  

SECTION III - FUNDING ALLOCATION

STATE FUNDS 

Fund Type 
27Awarded 
Previously 

28Award 
This Action 

29Cumulative 
Award 

30Special & Other Fund Descriptions 

General Fund 

Special Fund 

Global Commitment 
(non-subrec ipient funds) 

Other State Funds 

FEDERAL FUNDS 
(includes subrecipient Global Commitment funds) 

Required Federal 
Award Information 

31CFDA# 32Program Title 
33Awarded 
Previously 

34Award 
This Action 

35Cumulative 
Award 

36FAIN 
37Federal 

Award 
Date 

38Total 
Federal 
Award 

39 Federal Awarding Agency:  40 Federal Award Project Descr:  

Federal Awarding Agency:   Federal Award Project Descr:  

Federal Awarding Agency:  Federal Award Project Descr:  

Federal Awarding Agency:  Federal Award Project Descr:  

Federal Awarding Agency:  Federal Award Project Descr:  

Total Awarded - All Funds 

SECTION IV - CONTACT INFORMATION 
STATE GRANTING AGENCY GRANTEE 

NAME:  NAME:  
TITLE:  TITLE:  
PHONE:  PHONE:  
EMAIL:  EMAIL:  

3

$98,115.00 $0.00 $98,115.00

10/05/2021 12/31/2023

 2021-CWSP-WID-06

Clean Water Service Provider Start-Up Grants 

 43329  Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission

29 Main St, #4

 Montpelier VT 05602

 Department of Environmental Conservation 06140

$0.00

$98,115.00 $0.00 $98,115.00  CWF-21932

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$98,115.00 $0.00 $98,115.00

Brian Voigt

Program Manager

(802) 229-0389

voigt@cvregion.com

Stephanie Cohen

Grants Specialist

(802) 461-5594

stephanie.cohen@vermont.gov

DocuSign Envelope ID: 39701B95-B3C2-4403-8C1E-EFE1BE82A30F
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2021-CWSP-WID-06 Amendment #03 

1 of 1 

 
                                                                                     

 
Vermont Department of Environmental Conservation Agency of Natural Resources 

 
 

STANDARD GRANT AMENDMENT 
 

 

1. Parties:  This is an Amendment for Grant #2021-CWSP-WID-06 for services between the State of Vermont, 
Department of Environmental Conservation (hereinafter called “State”), and Central Vermont Regional 
Planning, (hereinafter called “Grantee”). This is the third change. 

 
2. Reason for Amendment: No cost time extension due to continued delays in publishing Chapter 6 of Act 76 

Guidance. Chapter 6 contains details that are necessary for the CWSPs to finish creating their internal 
processes for the project work at hand. 

 
3. Change: Change: Change: Grant term on page 1, section 8 to end on 12/31/2023 

4. Amendment:  All other terms and conditions of the original grant remain in full force and effect.  No other 
changes, modifications, or amendments in the terms and conditions of this grant shall be effective unless 
reduced to writing, numbered, and signed by the duly authorized representative of the State and Grantee. 

 

 
 
 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES, AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THIS CONTRACT. 

STATE OF VERMONT     GRANTEE 

By:       By:       

_____________________________   _____________________________  

Commissioner       Name: (Print) ____________________________ 

Dept of Environmental Conservation   Title: ________________________  

Date: ________________________   Date: ________________________  
 
 

        

  

                       
        
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 39701B95-B3C2-4403-8C1E-EFE1BE82A30F

Christian Meyer

Acting Executive Director
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Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

December 5, 2022          
Page 1 of 3 

CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 1 
Executive Committee 2 

DRAFT MINUTES 3 
December 5, 2022 Meeting 4 

Present: 5 
 Peter Carbee  Laura Hill-Eubanks  Michael Gray
 Lee Cattaneo  Steve Lotspeich  Janet Shatney
 Jerry D’Amico

Staff:  Christian Meyer, Nancy Chartrand, Brian Voigt 6 
Guests:  George Clain, Barre Town Commissioner; Ahsan Ijaz, Ijaz Group; Bryan Mills, Montpelier 7 

8 
Call to Order 9 
Chair Lotspeich called the meeting to order at 4:01 pm. 10 

11 
Adjustments to the Agenda 12 
Christian Meyer requested adding the CCRCP CEDS Contract Amendment authorization extending the 13 
contract completion date.   There was also a brief discussion of adding the exit interview information to 14 
a future agenda under executive session. 15 

16 
Public Comment 17 
None. 18 

19 
FY22 Audit Update 20 
Christian Meyer advised the FY22 audit has been completed and is in draft form at this time.  There will 21 
not be a management discussion and analysis as there has been in the past due to Bonnie’s departure. 22 
He noted that no deficiencies were identified, however, there were recommendations regarding 23 
timesheet approval and documentation, journal entry approval process, and internal controls 24 
recommendations.  The next step will be to receive final audit in approximately one week, which is to be 25 
submitted to funders by 12/31/22.  At the January Executive Committee meeting the auditor will join to 26 
provide a full presentation on the audit.  Discussion ensued regarding providing the audit to funders 27 
prior to the Committee approving it.  It was confirmed that the audit is not “approved” but rather 28 
“accepted” by the Committee.  29 

30 
Financial Report 31 
Ahsan Ijaz provided an overview of the financial report provided in the packet. 32 
J. D’Amico moved to accept October 31, 2022 unaudited financials, second by M. Gray.  Motion carried.33 

34 
Contract/Agreement Authorization 35 
Department of Environmental Conservation – Upper Winooski Stormwater Mitigation Projects 36 

P. Carbee moved to authorize the Acting Executive Director to sign the agreement; L. Cattaneo seconded.37 
Motion carried. 38 

39 
40 
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Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

December 5, 2022          
Page 2 of 3 

K. Bellavance Landworks and Hauling - Gully Stabilization and Stormwater Mitigation at The Health 1 
Center 2 

P. Carbee moved to authorize the Acting Executive Director to sign the contract amendment; L. Cattaneo3 
seconded.  Motion carried. 4 

5 
SLR International Corporation – Plainfield Gully Stormwater Implementation Engineering Services – 6 
Amendment #1 7 

P. Carbee moved to authorize the Acting Executive Director to sign the contract amendment; L. Cattaneo8 
seconded.  Motion carried. 9 

10 
Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission – Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 11 
Amendment #2 12 
P. Carbee moved to authorize the Acting Executive Director to sign the contract amendment; L. Cattaneo13 
seconded.  Motion carried. 14 

15 
Christian Meyer and Brian Voigt provided further details on the “for the information only” contracts that 16 
were also included in the packet. 17 

18 
FY24 Nominating Committee 19 
Christian Meyer provided an overview of the memorandum in the packet.  Discussion ensued on next 20 
steps and it was agreed to send a recruitment email out to the full Board.  Laura Hill Eubanks also 21 
offered to serve as the Executive Committee member on the committee. 22 

23 
Insurance Update 24 
Christian Meyer provided an overview of the memorandum in the packet.  25 

26 
Clean Water Service Provider Director 27 
P. Carbee moved to designate the Executive Director and/or Acting Director as CWSP Director seconded28 
by L. Hill-Eubanks. Motion carried. 29 

30 
Executive Director Search Committee Update 31 
Chair Lotspeich advised the Committee has received a total of 18 applicants and are in the process of 32 
contacting five applicants for interviews with the Search Committee; which will take place on Thursday, 33 
December 15th and Friday, December 16th.  A recommendation will then be made of candidates to be 34 
interviewed by the full Executive Committee prior to a final recommendation going before the Board. 35 

36 
January Meeting Date 37 
It was confirmed the Committee will need to meet Tuesday, January 3rd due to the holiday. 38 

39 
Meeting Minutes 40 
It was noted the minutes should be amended to change “CVRPC Participation Policy” to “CVRPC 41 
Personnel Policy”. 42 
L. Hill-Eubanks moved to approve October 31, 2022 Executive Committee minutes as amended; L.43 
Cattaneo seconded.  Motion carried. 44 

45 
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Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

December 5, 2022          
Page 3 of 3 

Commission Meeting Agenda 1 
Christian Meyer provided a brief overview of the planned presentations on the agenda.  It was 2 
suggested to move the Shared Assessor presentation ahead of the CEDS item on the agenda. 3 
J. D’Amico moved to approve December 13, 2022 Board agenda as amended; P. Carbee seconded.4 
Motion carried. 5 

6 
Adjourn 7 
L. Cattaneo moved to adjourn at 5:11 pm; M. Gray seconded.  Motion carried.8 

9 
Respectfully submitted, 10 
Nancy Chartrand, Office Manager 11 

12 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
January 10, 2023 at 6:30 pm 
Remote Participation via Zoom1 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81136818419?pwd=dDFDbDhrTm56TUNQUlp3WEorYzRZZz09 
One tap mobile: +19294362866,,81136818419#,,,,*722490# US (New York) 

Dial in via phone:  1-929-436-2866  Meeting ID: 811 3681 8419  Passcode: 722490 
Or find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcjBhj3bIX 

Download the app at least 5 minutes before the meeting starts: https://zoom.us/download 
 

Page AGENDA 
 6:30

2 
Introductions 
Adjustments to the Agenda 
Public Comments 

 6:35 Clean Water Advisory Committee Membership – Brian Voigt 
 6:45 Open Meeting Law Resolution (enclosed)3   
 6:55 USDA Rural Business Development Grant Resolution (enclosed)3   
 7:05 Nominating Committee Appointments (enclosed)3   

 7:20 West Central Vermont Strategic Economic Development Strategy Update – Jon 
Ignatowski 

 7:35 Minutes (enclosed)3   
 7:45 Reports (enclosed) 

Update/questions on Staff, Director, and Committee Reports 

 8:00 Adjourn 
   

 
Next Meeting:  February 14, 2023 

 
 

 

                                                           
Persons with disabilities who require assistance or alternate arrangements to participate in programs or 
activities are encouraged to contact Nancy Chartrand at 802-229-0389 or chartrand@cvregion.com at least 3 
business days prior to the meeting for which services are requested. 
2 Times are approximate unless otherwise advertised. 
3 Anticipated action item. 
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